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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 57" Annual General Meeting of the members of STAR
WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED will be held on Wednesday, the 30" day of December,
2020 at 11.00 A.M. at its Registered Office at 35, Link Road, 2™ Floor, Lajpat Nagar-
I, New Delhi-110024 to transact the following business:- ;

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2020, including Balance Sheet as at 31%
March, 2020, the statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and
the Reports of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

To declare 4 % dividend on preference shares.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Mahima Gupta (DIN 02237504), who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Rekha Gupta (DIN 00054073), who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

To authorize Board of Directors of the Company to fix the remuneration of the Statutory
Auditors for the financial year 2020-21 and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution
as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 142 read with relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment thereof, for the time being in
force), the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to fix the remuneration of
Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2020-21.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to
give effect to this resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6.

To ratify the remuneration to the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2020-21
and if thought fit to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resoluiion:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provision of Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 {including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force}, the remuneration payable to M/s. S.
Chander & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Regn. No.100105) appointed by the
Board as Cost Auditors to conduct Audit of the cost records of the Company for the
Financial Year 2020-21, as set out in the Statement annexed to the Notice convening
this meeting, be and is hereby ratified.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and any
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to Article 95 and any other applicable Article
of the Articles of Association of the Company, subject to provisions of section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
re-appointment of Mr. Mohinder Kumar Gupta (DIN: 0005431 10), as a Managing
Director of the Company for a period of five years commencing from 01.12.2020 on the
existing terms & conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the
notice.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized
to alter or vary the terms of appointment, to the extent recommended by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee from time to time as may be considered appropriate, in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or Company Secretary of
the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds and things,

which may be usual, expedient or proper to give effect to the above resolution.”

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 196, 197, 203 and any
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof), read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013 and pursuant to Article 95 and any other applicable Article
of the Articles of Association of the Company, subject to provisions of section 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013, the consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
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re-appointment of Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN: 00054145), as a Whole Time Director of
the Company for a period of five years commencing from 01.12.2020 on the existing
terms & conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement annexed to the notice.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized
to alter or vary the terms of appointment, to the extent recommended by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee from time to time as may be considered appropriate, in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors or Company Secretary of
the Company be and are hereby authorized to do all necessary acts, deeds and things,
which may be usual, expedient or proper to give effect to the above resolution.”

Place: New Delhi By order of the Board of Directors
Date: 21.09.2020 0 L
Q\\AVM
4
(Rekha Sharma )

Sr. DGM Legal & Company Secretary
M.NO.-FCS-6428

Notes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING (THE MEETING) IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND
VOTE ON A POLL, INSTEAD OF HIMSELF / HERSELF.

THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT
APPOINTING A PROXY SHOULD, HOWEVER, BE DEPOSITED AT THE
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING

2. A PROXY CAN ACT ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND
HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE T OTAL
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS.

3. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE T OTAL SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A
SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY FOR HIS ENTIRE SHAREHOLDING AND SUCH
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PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANOTHER PERSON OR

SHAREHOLDER.

THE PROXY HOLDER SHALL PROVE HIS IDENTITY AT THE TIME OF
ATTENDING THE MEETING.

WHEN A MEMBER APPOINTS A PROXY AND BOTH THE MEMBER AND PROXY
ATTEND THE MEETING, THE PROXY STANDS AUTOMATICALLY REVOKED.

REQUISITION FOR INSPECTION OF PROXIES SHALL HAVE TO BE MADE IN
WRITING BY MEMBERS ENTITLED TO VOTE ON ANY RESOLUTION THREE DAYS
BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

PROXIES SHALL BE MADE AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION DURING TWENTY
FOUR HOURS BEFORE THE TIME FIXED FOR THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE
MEETING AND ENDING WITH THE CONCLUSION OF THE MEETING.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of the businesses set out above is annexed hereto.

Corporate members are required to send to the Company a Certified copy of the
Board Resolution, pursuant to section 113 of the Companies Act 2013,
authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting.

Members are requested to bring their attendance slip duly signed as per the
specimen signature recorded with the Company for admission into the Meeting
Hall along with their copy of annual report to the meeting.

I1.

Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their
Client ID and DP ID Numbers and who hold shares in physical form are
requested to write their Folio Number in the attendance slip for attending
meeting.

. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, members holding shares in

physical form are advised to file nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with
the Company’s share transfer agent. In respect of shares held in electronic/
Dematerialized form, the members may please contact their respective
depository participant.
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. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is

higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

In terms of provisions of Section 136(1) read with its relevant provision of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Report is being sent to the members of the
Company. The said Annual Report along with the documents stated in the notice
are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company on all
working days except Saturday, between 10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. up to the date of
Meeting and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company
and any member interested in obtaining such information may write to the
Company Secretary and the same will be furnished without any fee and free of
cost.

In terms of Article of Association of the Company, Mrs. Mahima Gupta (DIN
02237504) and Mrs. Rekha Gupta (DIN 00054073), Directors are liable to retire
by rotation and being eligible offered themselves for re-appointment as
Directors. The Board of Directors of the Company recommends their re-
appointment.

Relevant Documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for
inspection by the members at the registered office of the Company on all
working days except Saturday, between 10.00 a.m. to 5.00 p.m. up to the date of
Meeting and including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding,
maintained under Section 170 and Register of Contracts or Arrangements in
which Directors are interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Rules issued thereunder and other statutory Registers will
be available for inspection by the members at the Meeting

For the purpose of determining the names of the Members eligible for dividend
on Preference Shares, if declared at the meeting,29‘h December, 2020 has been
fixed as Record Date. The dividend, if declared, will be paid on or after 30™
December, 2020 to the Shareholders, whose names will appear in the Register
of Member on 29" December, 2020.

Queries on accounts and operations of the Company, if any, my please be sent at
the Corporate Office of the Company, at least seven days in advance of the
meeting so that the answers may be made readily available at the meeting.
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20. In keeping with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs’ Green Initiative measures,
the Company hereby requests members who have not registered their email
addresses so far, to register their email addresses for receiving all
communication including annual report, notices, circulars etc. from the
Company electronically.

Place: New Delhi By order of the Board of Directors

Date: 21.09.2020
N

(Rekha Sharma )
Sr. DGM Legal & Company Secretary
M. NO.-FCS 6428
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 '

As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 the following Explanatory
Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Special Businesses set out from Item
No. 6, 7 and 8 of the accompanying Notice dated 21.09.2020 .

Item No. 6 Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditor

As the members are aware, in terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 3A and Rule 4 of Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company
is required to appoint a Cost Auditor to conduct Audit of the cost records of the
Company, M/s S. Chander & Associates, Cost Accountants have been appointed as the
Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21 by the Board of
Directors, in its meeting held on 13" June, 2020, on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee of the Company. The Board has fixed remuneration of Rs. 1,50,000/-
(Rupees One Lac Fifty Thousand only).

In terms of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration of the Cost Auditors fixed by the Board of
Directors shall be ratified by the members.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of Directors and
KMP is concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in this Resolution. The Board
commends the Resolution for approval of the members as an Ordinary Resolution.

Item No. 7 — Re-appointment of Mr. Mohinder Kumar Gupta as a Managing
Director

Mr. Mohinder Kumar Gupta was appointed as a Managing Director of the Company for
a period of five years commencing from 01.12.2015 to 30.11.2020 on the terms and
conditions as approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on
30/09/2015. The present term of appointment of Mr. Mohinder Kumar Gupta as a
Managing Director to be expired on 30.11.2020. The Board of Directors at their
meeting held on 21/09/2020 have, subject to the approval of the Shareholders, re-
appointed Mr. Mohinder Kumar Gupta as Managing Director of the Company with
effect from 01.12.2020 for a period of 5 years on the same remuneration and terms &
conditions as are prevalent.

The Board is of the opinion that his services should continue to be available to the
Company to achieve still greater heights, by re-appointing him as a Managing Director.
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Mr. Mohinder Kumar Gupta and his relatives may be deemed to be concerned or
interested in the said resolution. No other Director, key managerial personnel or their
relatives are concerned or interested in the said resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution, for his re-appointment as a Managing Director,
by the shareholders, as an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 7 of this Notice.

Item No. 8 - Re-appointment of Mr. Abhishek Gupta as Whole-Time
Director

Mr. Abhishek Gupta was appointed as a Whole Time Director of the Company for a
period of five years commencing from 01.12.2015 to 30.11.2020 on the terms and
conditions as approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held on
30/09/2015. The present term of appointment of Mr. Abhishek Kumar Gupta as a
Whole Time Director to be expired on 30.11.2020. The Board of Directors at their
meeting held on 21/09/2020 have, subject to the approval of the Shareholders, re-
appointed Mr. Abhishek Gupta as a Whole Time Director of the Company with effect
from 01.12.2020 for a period of 5 years on the same remuneration and terms &
conditions as are prevalent.

The Board is of the opinion that his services should continue to be available to the
Company to achieve still greater heights, by re-appointing him as a Managing Director.

Mr. Abhishek Gupta and his relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested in
the said resolution. No other Director, key managerial personnel or their relatives are
concerned or interested in the said resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution, for his re-appointment as a Managing Director,
by the shareholders, as an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item No. 8 of this Notice.
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PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 Form No. MGT-11]

(3) of the Companies

CIN : U27109DL1963PLC117600

Name of the Company : Star Wire (India) Limited

Registered Office : 35, Link Road, 2™ Floor, Lajpat Nagar-I11, New Delhi - 110024,
Website : www.starwire.in

Name : address:

E-mail Id: Folio No./DP ID No.- Client ID No.

[/ We, being the member(s) of
Company, hereby appoint:

Equity Shares of the above named

1. Name: Address:

E-mail Id: signature: , or failing him/ her
2. Name: Address:

E-mail Id: signature: , or failing him/ her
3. Name: Address:

E-mail Id: signature: , or failing him/ her

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me / us and on my / our behalf at the
Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, the 30" day of December,
2020 at 11:00 A.M. at its Registered Office at 35, Link Road, 2™ Floor, Lajpat Nagar-III, New
Delhi-110024 and at any adjournment thereof, in respect of such resolutions set out in the

Notice convening the meeting, as are indicated below:

¥ g 2 o
Resolutions

Ordinary Business: }

For

Against

1. | Adoption of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

2. | Declaration of dividend on Preference Shares
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3. | Re-appointment of Mrs. Mahima Gupta, who retires by rotation
4. | Re-appointment of Mrs. Rekha Gupta, who retires by rotation
5. | Fixation of Remuneration of M/s. PRYD & Co., Chartered Accountants,

Statutory Auditors of the Company for the F.Y. 2020-21

Special Business:

6. | Ratification of Remuneration of Cost Auditor
7. | Re-appointment of Mr. Mohinder Kumar Gupta as a Managing Director
8. | Re-appointment of Mr. Abhishek Gupta as a Whole Time Director
Signed this day of , 2020.
Affix
Signature of Shareholder: Revenue
Stamp of
Re.1/-

Signature of Proxy Holder(s):

MNotes:

1.

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting,.

This form of Proxy shall be signed by the member or his duly authorized attorney, or if the
member is a body corporate, it should be duly sealed and signed by an officer or an
attorney. The Proxy form which unstamped or inadequately stamped or where the stamp
has not been cancelled or is undated or which does not state the name of the Proxy shall
not be considered valid.

Proxy need not be a member of the company. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of
the Companies Act, 2013, a person cannot act a proxy on behalf of members exceeding
fifty and holding in aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the
company carrying voting rights. A Member holding more than ten percent of the total
share capital of the company carrying Voting Rights may appoint a single person as proxy
for his entire shareholding and such person shall not act as a Proxy for another member.

The submission by a member of this form of Proxy will not preclude such member from

attending in person and voting at the meeting. If both member and proxy attend the
meeting, the proxy shall automatically revoked.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

Folio No.* No. of Shares

DPID Client ID

Members or their Proxies are requested to present this Slip in accordance with the Specimen
Signatures registered with the Company, at the entrance of the Meeting Hall, for admission.

Name of the attending Member / Proxy
(in BLOCK LETTERS)

I hereby record mR/ presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on
Wednesday, the 30" Day of December, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. at the Registered Office of the
Company at 35, Link Road, 2™ Floor, Lajpat Nagar-III, New Delhi-110024.

Member’s Signatures Proxy’s Signatures

*Applicable for Members holding shares in Physical form.
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‘DIRECTORS REPORT

The Members
Star Wire (India) Limited,

Dear Members,
N ~ e SR . - . i
On behalf of the Board of Directors, we have pleasure in presenting the 57" Annual Report on the

performance and achievements of your company for the year ended 31st March, 2020 together with
the Audited Statements of Accounts, Auditors’ Report and Financial highlights.

I Financial Highlights
1.1, The financial performance of company has been impacted by economic slowdown during
the year more particularly in domestic automobile sector. Though company managed to sail
across the same to significant extent, the nationwide lockdown in last week of March due to
COVID-19 affected final inspection, certification and dispatch of materials which were
& planned during March,2020.
Revenues from operations & Operating Income for the year ended March 31, 2020 stood at
Rs.57263.44/- lakhs against Rs. 62163.51/- lakhs in the previous year. However, in-spite of
decline in revenue, company was able to maintain the EBIDTA margin at 14.39% against
14.52% of previous year.
Your Company is continuously engaged in up-gradation and modernization of Plant &
Machineries to manufacture the products in more refined manner with optimized cost.
1.2, The highlights of the Company’s performance are as under:
rofit Before Tax stood at Rs.37.73 Crs —at 6.59% of sales;
Net Profit After Tax for the year is 7.47% (Rs. 42.78 Crs) as against 5.13% (Rs. 31.91
Crs} of previous year;
1.3 Your Company achieved the following results during FY 2019-20:
{Rs. In Lakhs)
! Particulars Current Year Previous Yesy
Profit before depreciation, Interest and 824287 9923.65
Tax
Less: Interest 2758.08 242385
Depreciation 171117 1872.53
Profit before tax 377357 50627.27
Less: Current Tax 525.31 1689.38
Deferred Tax {1109.77) 747.01
Income Tax expense of earlier vears 79.84 -
Profit after tax 4278.19 3194.88
Add: Balance b/f from previous year 24993.11 21883.09
Total 29271.30 25473.97
Less: Appropriations:
Proposed Divider 1@ o
Preference Shares 0.06 0.00
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Equity Shares 0.00 0.00
Dividend Distribution Tax 4.60 4.00
Provisions for CSR 93.02 80.85
Profit carried forward to Balance Sheet 2%178.29 2499311 i

*The Interest Amount includes RBs.12.90 lacs/- towards Dividend on Redeemable Preference

Shares & Taxes thereon. .

** During the financial year approval from Hon’ble NCLT was obtained for re-issue of 4 %
Redeemable Preference Shares which were due for redemption on or before August, 2020
on the same terms & conditions as were prevalent.

Future Outlook & Expansion:

b

The company continues to evolve modern production techniques and processes to improve
production efficiency and optimize cost by efficient utilization of resources. We intend to
leverage our Design, Engineering and Manufacturing capabilities to improve our focus on
advanced technology products.

2.2. Your company further plans to develop new grades of steel in valve steel segment which are
emerging as fast growing replacement of existing high nickel alloys. With the development of
new grades, it is expected to achieve significant volume growth in Valve steel segment.

2.3. Your company expects that effect of new investments in cost saving and capacity expansions to :
be operational from next financial year. This should significantly increase the operational |
margin for next financial year onwards and strengthen our competitive positioning

2.4. Inits plan to move to next level by investing in triple melt processes in order to produce super-
alloys/titanium based material for Defense, Aerospace and Automotive sectors, project activity
has started and it is expected to complete the same by end of FY 21-22. We have already
developed some produces by streamlining downstream process and with these investments we
will increase our presence in these markets.

1
},l‘x

Your company plans to shift it foundry operations to Plant-Il with addition of modem
equipment which will provide larger space to cast larger dia castings and reduce the costs. The
project is likely to be completed by end of FY 20-21.

2.6. The efforts of company on development of high performance materials to be used for
application in marine, acrospace and defense sectors are continuing.

2.7. With a view to expand existing business and enter into new areas of business, your company
has tied up with experts in overseas countries to provide opportunities for new product
development and customers.

2.8.  Atmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan led by Government of India is giving significant
impetus to self reliance and local production which may favorably impact the
operations of company.
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Dividend & Transfer to General Reserve

Your Directors, this year also, have decided not to recommend dividend to equity shareholders,
for the long term growth objectives of the Company which are to be met by internal cash
accruals. However, your Directors are pleased to recommend 4% dividend to the Preference
Shareholders, which is payable on obtaining Share Holders approval in the ensuing Annua]

General Meeting.

During the year no amount has been transferred to General Reserve by the Company.

Credit Rating:

Credit rating of company has been reaffirmed at CRISIL “A™ with negative outlook.

Impact of Business due to COVID-19
Financial Year 2019-20

The nationwide lockdown due to pandemic has affected the inspection, certification and dispatch
of materials planned during March,20 and resulted in decline in sales for the year and increase in

inventory levels,

Financial Year 2020-2]

The production activities were totally halted for first 45 days in first quarter of FY 21. However,
post resumption and by following social distancing and sanitization, company has ramped up fast
to reach to pre-covid level of operations from July,20 onwards. With improvement in supply

chain and logistics, the company is fully geared up to execute pending orders so as to minimize
the impact of disruptions as far possible.

Debt Obligations

With emphasis on collection of receivables, company has been able to meet all its debt
obligations without opting for any moratorium as provided by RBI and is confident of
maintaining same moving forward.

Deposits
During the year under review your Company has not accepted any deposits during the year, no

repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year within the meaning of
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 2014,

Subsidiary/Associate Company
As on March 31, 2020, the Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate Company.

Change in the Nature of Business:

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company during financial vear ended
March 31, 2020.

" STAR WIRFE (INDIA) LIMi TED
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10. Directors

10.1 As per the Companies Act, 2013 the provisions in respect of retirement of directors by rotation
will not be applicable to Independent Directors, in view of this, no independent director is
considered to be retiring by rotation but all other directors except Managing Director as per
AOA of the company, will be retiring by rotation accordingly , one third among all other
directors namely Mr. Samir Gupta (DIN 00054308) and Mr. Abhishek Gupta (DIN 00054145),
Directors are liable to retire by rotation, are retiring at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment.

10.2 Independent Directors

Mr. Pankaj Jain and Mr. Girish Mohan Ganeriwala, Independent Director holds the
office for the term of five years ending on 26.09.2022. They are not liable to retire by
rotation in terms of Section 149(13) of the Act.

The Independent Directors of the Company have declared that they meet the criteria of
Independence in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation
16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfill the
conditions of independence as specified in the Act and the Rules made thereunder and
are independent of the management.

10.3 Governance Guidelines:

The Board of the Company has adopted Governance Guidelines on Board Effectiveness.
The Guidelines cover aspects related to composition and role of the Board, Chairman
and Directors, Board diversity, definition of independent Director Term, retirement age
and Committees of the Board. It also covers aspects relating to nomination,
appointment, induction and development of Directors, Director Remuneration, Code of
Conduct, Board Effectiveness Review and Mandates of Board Committees.

10.4 Procedure for Nomination and Appointment of Directors:

The Nomination Remuneration Committee is responsible for developing competency
requirements for the Board based on the industry and strategy of the Company. The
Board composition analysis reflects in-depth understanding of the Company, including its
strategies, environment, operations, and financial condition and compliance

requirements.

The Nomination Remuneration Committee conducts a gap analysis to refresh the Board
on a periodic basis, including each time a Director’s appointment or re-appointment is
required. The Committee is also responsible for reviewing the profiles of potential
candidate’s vis-a-vis the required competencies and meeting potential candidates, prior to
making recommendations of their nomination to the Board. At the time of appointment,
specific requirements for the position, including expert knowledge expected, is
communicated to the appointee.
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10.5 Declaration and meeting of Independent Directors

The Independent Directors of the Company have declared that they meet the criteria of
Independence in terms of Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that there is no change
in their status of Independence. A separate meeting of Independent Directors in line with the
statutory provisions was held on 28.06.2019, wherein all Independent Directors were present. The
Independent Directors in the meeting:

I Reviewed the performance of non-independent Directors including Managing Director &
CEO and the Board as a whole:

I Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information between the
Company’s management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and
reasonably perform its duties.

10.6 Board Evaluation:

i) Performance Evaluation of the Independent Directors and Other Individual Directors:

The Company has framed a policy for Appointment of Directors and Senior Management and
Evaluation of Directors’ Performance ("Board Evaluation Policy™). The said policy sets out
criteria for performance evaluation of Independent Directors, other Non- Executive Directors
and the Executive Directors.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, the Board carries out the performance evaluation of all
the Directors (including Independent Directors) on the basis of recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the criteria mentioned in the Board Evaluation
Policy. The Board decided that the performance evaluation of Directors should be done by the
entire Board of Directors excluding the Director being evaluated and unanimously agreed on
the following assessment criteria for evaluation of Directors’ performance:

a. Attendance and active participation in the Meetings;

b. Bringing one’s own experience to bear on the items for discussion;
¢. Governance — i) Awareness i) Observance; and

d. Value addition to the business aspects of the Company.

ii) Performance Evaluation of Executive Director:

The performance of the Managing Director and/or CEO is evaluated on the basis of
achievement of performance targets/ criteria given to him by the Board from time to time.

iti) Performance Evaluation by the Board of its own performance and its Committees:

The performance of the Board is evaluated by the Board in the overal] context of by the Board
of the Company’s principle and values, philosophy and mission statement, strategic and business
plans and demonstrating this through its action on important matters, the effectiveness of the
Board and the respective Committees in providing guidance to the management of the Company
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and keeping them informed, open communication, the constructive participation of members and
promipt decision making, level of attendance in the Board meetings, constructive participation in
the discussion on the Agenda items, monitoring cash flow, profitability, income & expenses,
productivity & other financial indicators, so as to ensure that the Company achieves its planned
results, effective discharge of the functions and roles of the Board etc. The performance of the

Cﬁm“ﬁ;i* ces is evaluated by the members of the respective Committees on the basis of the

5 o,

Committee effectively psrf@;méﬁv the regg}asmbﬁ ty as Qmimed in its Charter, Committee

neetings held at appropriate frequency, length of them meetings being appropriate, open

communication & constructive participation of members and prompt decision-making eic
iv)  Meetings of the Board

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on CG‘"{EQ&H’V / business policy and
strategy apart from other Board business. The Board / Committee Meetings are pre-scheduled
and a tentative annual calendar of the Board and Commitiee Meetings is circulated to the
Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful
participation in the meetings. However, in case of a special and urgent business need, the
Board’s approval is taken by passing resolutions by circulation, as permitted by law, which is
noted and confirmed in the subsequent Board meeting. During the year, 11 meetings of the
Board of Directors were held on 08.04.2019, 22.05.2019, 30.07.2019, 10.08.2019, 26.08.2019,
30.09.2019,07.10.2019, 15.11.2019, 30.11.2019, 27.12.201% and 18.02.2020.

11. Committees of the Board of Directors

Your Company has duly constituted the Committees required under the Act read with
applicable Rules made under.

The Board has constituted the following Committees:
i) Audit Commitiee

ii) Nomination and Remuneration Commitice
i1y Corporate Social Responsibility Committes

H

1.1 Aundit Committee:

Pursuant to provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted
Audit Committee. As on 31" March, 2020, the Audit Commitiee comprised the following

Directors:

L. Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Chairperson

2. Mr. Pankaj Jain, Kér’mbé {Independent Director)

3 Mr. Girish Mohan Ganeriwala, Member (Independent Director)

The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Commuttee.
a. Meetings of Audit Commitiee

Audit Coms “i}i{é}{ met 4 (Four) times during the year ended on 31 March, 2020 on 02.05.2019,
30.07.2019, 01.10.2019 and on 03.02.2020 and the gap between two meetings was not more than
one hundred twenty days.
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The quorum for the Audit Committee meetings is either two members or one third of the
members of the Audit Committee whichever is greater, but there should be a minimum of two
independent members present.

b.  Powers of Audit Committee
The powers of the Audit Committee include the following:

. To investigate any activity within its terms of reference

- To seek information on and from any employee.

- To obtain outside legal or other professional advice.

- To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary.
. To protect whistle blowers.

- To consider other matters as referred by the Board.

h —

[ R T S O

Role of Audit Committee

e

The Role of the Audit Committee includes the following:

1. Oversight of our Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the Financial Statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

2. Recommendation to the Board regarding fixation of audit fee to be paid to statutory auditors
under the Companies Act and approval for payment with respect to any other services
rendered by the statutory auditors.

3. Reviewing, with the management, the annual Financial statements and Auditors” Report
thereon before submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:

I.  Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included
in the Board’s report in terms of Clause (¢) of Sub-section 3 of Section 134 of the

Companies Act, 2013.
tl.  Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same,

.  Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by
management.

Iv.  Significant adjustments made in the Financial Statements arising out of audit findings.
v. Compliance with requirements relating to Financial Statements.

vi.  Disclosure of any Related Party Transactions.

vil.  Qualifications in the draft Audit Report.

4. Reviewing/examine, with the management, the quarterly Financial Statements before
submission to the Board for approval.

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ application of funds raised through
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/notice and the report
submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the end use/ utilization of proceeds of a

n
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public or rights issue & related matters and making appropriate recommendations to the
Board to take up steps in this matter.

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors and
adequacy of the internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department,
reporting structure, coverage and frequency of internal audit.

Discussion with internal auditors and / or auditors any significant findings and follow up
there on.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal
auditors/auditors/agencies into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a
failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture
holders, shareholders (in case of non payment of declared dividends) and creditors.

. To review / oversee the functioning of vigil mechanism / Whistle Blower mechanism of

Company;

To review the follow up action on the audit observations of the Comptroller & Auditor
General audit.

Provide an open avenue of communication between the independent auditor, internal auditor
and the Board.

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties;

Review all related party transactions in the Company. For this purpose, the Audit Committee
may designate a member who shall be responsible for reviewing related party transactions:

. Review with the independent auditor the co-ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness

of coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and the effective use of all audit resources.

. Consider and review the following with the independent auditor and the management:

The adequacy of internal controls including computerized information system controls and
security; and

Related findings and recommendations of the independent auditor and internal auditor,
together with the management responses.

Consider and review the following with the management, internal auditor and the
independent auditor:

. Significant findings during the year, including the status of previous audit recommendations;
& & < £

and
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i.  Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on  the scope of
activities or access to required information.

20. Review and monitor the Auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit

process.
21. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments.
22. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary.
23. Evaluation of Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management Systems.

24. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit
Committee under the Companies Act, 2013, as amended from time to time.

d.  Review of information by Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

I Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations.

2. Statement of significant related party transactions submitted by management.

3. Management letters/letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors.
4. Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses,

5. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor.

All the recommendations of Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

11.2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company had constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee in line with the
requirements of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has formulated the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
independence of directors and recommends to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for
the Directors, Key managerial Personnel and other employees. The brief terms of the policy
framed by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in pursuant to the provisions of Section
178(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder are as follows:

a) The Committee shall ensure formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy,
relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees.

b)  The committee shall ensure that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the Company
successfully;

¢)  The committee shall also ensure that the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear
and meets appropriate performance benchmarks;

d)  The committee shall also ensure that the remuneration to directors, key managerial
personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
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reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the
Company and its goals.

The Key Objectives of the Committee are:
. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and

independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;

[

o

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board:
3. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the
Board their appointment and removal. The Company shall disclose the remuneration
policy and the evaluation criteria in its Annual Report.

5. Assessing and reviewing the performance of Senior/ Top Management Employees of the
Company and recommend their remuneration package as per Policy of the Company after
considering the employment scenario, remuneration package of the industry and
remuneration package of the managerial talent of other industries.

During the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 two meetings of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee were held on 02.05.2019 and on 30.07.2019. The composition of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the details of meetings attended by the Directors
is as under:

Name of Director Category Designation
1. | Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Non-Executive Chairperson
Director
2. | Mr. Pankaj Jain Non-Executive Member
Independent Director
3. | Mr. Girish Mohan Ganeriwala Non-Executive Member
Independent Director

Remuneration Policy of the Company

The Company's remuneration policy is driven by the success and performance of the individual
employees and the Company. Company’s Compensation philosophy is to align Directors and
compensation with our business objectives, so that compensation is used as a strategic tool that
helps us recruit, motivate and retain highly talented individuals who are committed to our core
values

We believe that our compensation programs are integral to achieving our goals. Through its
compensation program, the Company endeavors to attract, retain, develop and motivate a high
performance workforce. Individual performance pay is determined by business performance of
the Company.

The Company pays remuneration by way of salary to its Managing Director, Whole Time
Directors and other Directors. Increments are decided by the Compensation Committee within the
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salary scale approved by the Board and Shareholders. Executive Directors are not entitled to
sitting fees for attending meeting of directors.

11.3 Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

In compliance with the requirements of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors have
constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee. A brief outline of the
Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken
and a reference to the weblink to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

In alignment with the “Vision™ of the Company, Star Wire (India) Limited, through its CSR
initiatives, will continue to enhance value creation in the society and in the community in which it
operates, through its services, conduct & initiatives, so as to promote sustained growth for the
society and community, in fulfillment of its role as a Socially Responsible Corporate, with
environmental concern.

The policy encompasses the Company’s philosophy, its responsibility as a corporate citizen and
lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially useful programs for welfare &
sustainable development of the community at large. The policy shall apply to all CSR initiatives

and activities taken up by the Company, for the benefit of different segments of the society,
specifically the old Age, deprived, under privileged and differently abled persons,

The composition of the CSR Committee is as under:-
. Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Chairperson,

2. Mr. Pankaj Jain (member) and

3. Mr. Abhishek Gupta (member).

During the year ended on 31% March, 2020 the Committee met 4 time on 02.05.2019, 30.07.2019,
01.10.2019 and on 03.02.2020

The said Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of:

¢ formulating and recommending to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR
Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company,

*  Monitoring the implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the
amount to be spent on CSR activities.

¢ Any other matter as the CSR Committee may deem appropriate after approval of the Board

of Directors or as may be directed by the Board of Directors from time to time.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments Under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013

Your company has not directly or indirectly:
a)  given any loan to any person or other body corporate other than usual advances.

b) given any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body
corporate or person and
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¢) acquired by way of subscription purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body
corporate.

Your company has not accepted deposits from public as envisaged under Sections 73 to 76 of
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014,

Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange

Information required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption and
foreign exchange earningsfoutgo is included in Annexure A,

&

Related Party Transactions

All transactions entered by the Company with Related Parties were in the Ordinary Course of
Business and at Arm’s Length pricing basis. The Audit Committee granted omnibus approval for
the transactions (which are repetitive in nature) and the same was reviewed by the Audit
Commitiee.

There were no materially significant transactions with Related Parties during the financial year
2019-20 which were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Suitable disclosures as required
under IND AS-24 have been made in Note 32.9 of the Notes to the financial statements. Detail of
Related Party Transactions has been given under Form AOC-2 attached herewith as Annexure -
B to this Report.

Extract of Annual Heturn

Ap extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as on March 31, 2020 is attached as Annexure-C
1o this Report.

Risk Management Policy

Your Company has a robust Risk Management policy. The Company through a Steering
Committee oversees the Risk Management process including risk identification, impact
assessment, effective implementation of the mitigation plans and risk reporting.

Internal Control System

A strong internal control system is pervasive in the Company. The Company has documented a

robust and comprehensive internal control system for all the major processes {0 ensure reliability
of financial reporting.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, scale
and complexity of its operations.

During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operations were observed. The Company has policies and procedures in place for ensuring proper
and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of assets, the prevention and detection of
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frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information.

The Company has a robust system for internal financial closure, certification mechanism for
certifying adherence to various accounting policies, accounting hygiene and accuracy of
provisions and other estimates.

Particulars of Employees and Related disclosures

Pursuant to Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration ot Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names and other particulars of the employees
drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said Rules are provided in the
Annexure —-D forming part of the Annual Report.

Auditors
20.1. Statutory Auditor

M/s PRYD & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Company having registration number (011626N) for the period of five years in the Annual
General Meeting held on September 27, 2017 till the conclusion of Annual General Meeting for the
Financial Year 2022 and the said appointment was subject to the ratification by members at every

subsequent Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the Companies Amendment Act, 2017, enforced on 7™ May, 2018 by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the appointment of Statutory Auditors is not required to be ratified
at every annual General Meeting.

The Report given by the Auditors on the financial Statement of the Company forms part of this
Report. There has been no qualifications, reservation adverse remarks or disclaimers given by the

by the Auditors in their Report.

20.2. Cost Auditor

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, the Cost Audit Records maintained by the Company is required to
be audited. The Board of Directors had, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed
M/s. S. Chander & Associates, (Regn. No: 100105) Cost Accountants, Delhi for conducting the
cost audit of the Company for Financial Year 2020-21.

As required under the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors is
required to be ratified by the members of the Company. Accordingly, resolution seeking
ratification for remuneration to be paid to Cost Auditors is included at Item No.06 of the Notice
convening Annual General Meeting.

20.3. Secretarial Auditor

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, your Company
has engaged the services of M/s. R K & Associates, Company Secretaries in Practice, Delhi to
conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

The Secretarial Audit Report (in Form MR-3) is attached as Annexure- E to this Report.
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The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or
disclaimer.

The Company is Q{}mpiéazst with the Secretaria E %Tanda{ds issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and approved by Central Government under Section [18(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013

18.4 Internal Auditor

The Board of Directors of your Company has appointed Ms. Kirti Gupta, Cost & W orks
Accountant as Internal Auditor pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013
to carry internal audit.

However, the sa é accounts were internally audited by Ms. Damini Mangla, who was appointed

an Internal Audi ter cessation of Ms. Kirti Gupta after ngbs‘ﬁ of concerned Financial Year.
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Initiatives:

As the members are aware that vocational training i.e. sewing centers for girls and computer
training centers for all are already been opened by the company four years back and same are doing
well. Total number of trainees undergoing training are 45, 25 students in sewing classes and 20
students in Computer classes as on date and total amount spent on this activity during the year is
Rs.4,34,982.07

The Company has also donated funds of Rs. 10,94,900.00 to certain trusts for CSR activities
falling under Sch. VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

Total Average net profit of the Company during the three immediately preceding financial years
for CSR initiative comes around Rs.4650.88 Lacs for the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2020 and
the amount required to be spent during the year is Rs.93.02 Lacs.

Annual Report on CSR Activities is attached as Annexure-F. The CSR policy is available on
company’s website, (web-link:hitp://www. starwire.in/CSRPolicy. pdf)

Material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
between the end of financial year (March 31, 2020) and the date of the Report September, 21,
2020).

Vigil Mechanisny/ Whistle Blower Policy

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 the Board of Directors had approved the Policy on
Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower. This Policy inter-alia provides a direct access to the Chairm

of the Audit Committee.

ed access to the Chairman

s

Your Company hereby affirms that no Director/ employee has been den
of the Audit Committee and that no complaints were received during the year.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy:
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The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on
Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act 2013
& the Rules there under for prevention and Redressal of Complaints of sexual harassment at
workplace. Further Company is committed to providing equal opportunities without regard to their
race, caste, sex, religion, color, nationality, disability etc. (permanent, temporary, contractual and
trainees) as well as any women visiting the Company's premises or women service providers are
covered under this policy. All employees are treated with dignity with a view to maintain a work
environment free from Sexual harassment whether physical, verbal or psychological.

During Fiscal year 2020 there were no complaints received or pending for disposal.

Order by Court or Tribunal

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal which
would impact the going concern status of the Company & its future operations.

Cautionary Statement

Statements in the Annual Report, particularly those which relate to Management Discussion and
Analysis, describing the Company’s objectives, projections, estimates and expectations, may
constitute ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations.
Although the expectations are based on reasonable assumptions, the actual results might differ.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3) (c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013,
Directors of your Company state and confirm that:

1. In the preparation of the annual accounts for the FY 2019- 20, the applicable Ind-AS
accounting standards have been followed and there are no material departures from the same;

2. The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020 and of the profit of the
Company for year ended on that date;

3. The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safe guarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

6. The Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and
that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

7. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

Compliance with Secretarial Standard

The Company has complied with the secretarial standards issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India on Board Meetings (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2).
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‘Annexure A’ to Directors’ Report

Particulars of conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Forcign Exchange

(A) Conservation of Energy

Your company is working very closely with Petroleum Conservation Research Association
(PCRA), New Delhi to take various measures to control the energy consumptions in re-rolling
furnaces, heat treatment furnaces, Mass flow system and PID controller are being put to bring
down the energy consumption. Regular audits are being undertaken by PCRA and effective
measures are being taken from time to time to conserve the energy.

The details of Power and fuel consumption:-

S. No. | Particulars [ 201920 | 2018-19 ]
| _Current Year | Previous Year

1. Electricity:
(a) Purchased:
Units Purchased (KVAH) 91103323 90327862
Total Cost (Rs) ~ 63,70,18,213 69,26,58,525
Rate/unit 6.99 7.67
(b) Own Generation —

Through generators:

Units Produced 2290067 1339805
Units/litter of fuel oil 3.84 3.78
Cost (Rs)/unit 9.48 10.52
Purchased Fuels consumed:

2. Diesel:
Quantity (ltrs) 205014 243762
Total Cost 1,34,30,589 1,65,78,493

- Average Rate per liter 65.51 68.01
J

3. Furnace Oil:
Quantity (ltrs) 2428805 3867795
Total Cost 8,48,19,099 14,18,19,560
Average Rate per liter 34.92 36.67

4. Gas (PNG):
Quantity (MMBTU) 217449.53 122501.23
Total cost 220955353 137964739
Average rate per MMBTU 1016.12 1]26.2?]

(B) Consumption per unit of production
Particalars Standards (If | 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18
any) Current Year Previous Year | Previous
Year
Iron & Steel Products Not Specific LMZ Units _per | 2542 _Units | 2406 Units
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MT of Scrap|per MT of | per MT of
Consumed Scrap Scrap
Consumed Consumed

Technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

1. The Company has been able to successfully absorbed technology transferred from DMRL &
NMRL (DRDO Labs) for special material used by Indian Navy in ship building program and
fruitful results of this technology absorption are benefitting the company by good order book
from Navy Ship Builders.

2. The Company is working with ARDE, Pune for development of Air Drooping Bomb, which is in
advance stage of manufacturing. This will benefit the Company as well as the Country as an
import substitution.

3. Incase of imported technology (imported during the last 5 years): NIL

Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo:

The Company has continued to maintain focus and avail of export opportunities based on economic
considerations. During the year, the Company has exports (FOB value) worth Rs.21751.80 Lakhs
against Rs.21614.96 Lakhs in the previous year. The total inflow in this year is Rs.22737.90 Lakhs
against Rs.20089.50 Lakhs in the previous year, while total outflow in this year is Rs.8487.61 Lakhs
against Rs.12319.36 Lakhs in the previous year.
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‘Annexure B’ to Directors’ Report

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by
the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto:
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship: NIL
b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions: Unsecured loan from related parties: NIL

¢) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions: NIL

d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value,
if any: NIL

e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions: NJL
f) Date(s) of approval by the Board: NIL
g) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first
proviso to Section 188: N.A

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm's length basis:
1. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship:

Mr. SR. Gupta, Mr. MK. Gupta, Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Mr. Samir Gupta, Mrs. Mahima Gupta
& Mr. Abhishek Gupta, Directors & their Relatives

b) Nature of transaction: Financial Arrangement in the form of Unsecured Loan from related
parties i.e. unsecured Loan

¢) Duration of transaction: coincidental with Bank Loan Agreements

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: unsecured loan is repayable on
demand and carries interest @ 12% p.a., monetary value of the transaction is as following:

M.K.Gupta: Director Remuneration Rs.93,50,000/-
Interest on Unsecured [ oan Rs.6,21.835/-

Samir Gupta: Director Remuneration Rs.85,00,000/-
Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.37,31.012/-

Abhishek Gupta: Director Remuneration Rs.36.90,000/-

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED.
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Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.26,84,208/-
Sita Ram Gupta: Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.2,81,831/-

Rekha Gupta: Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.36,62,319/-
Director Sitting Fee Rs.10,0060/-

Kahima Gupta Director Sitting Fee Rs.10,000/-
Interest on Unsecured Loan Rs.3,23,799/-

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019
) Amount paid as advances, if any: N.A.
2. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Star Wire (India) Engineering Limited
b) Nature of transaction: Machining of castings

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value,
Rs. 7,17,49,913/- {(Machining Charges)

Rs.5,42,243/- {Purchase of Goods)
Rs.496,33,290/- (Sale of Goods)
Rs.77,68,067/- {Interest on Advances)

e} Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019

f} Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL.

3. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Abhishek Gupta
b) Nature of transaction: leasing of immovable property
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value,
If any: Annual Rent of Rs.9, 60,000/~ for Registered Office of the Company

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on 08.04.2019

) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

4. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Sita Ram Mohinder Kumar Gupta HUF
b} Nature of transaction: leasing of immovable property
¢} Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value,
if any: Annual Rent of Rs.9,00,000/- for godown of the Company

4. Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on 08.04.2019
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f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Supreme Commercial Enterprises Ltd.

b) Nature of transaction: Human Resource services
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.354,36,112/- (Human Resource
services) Rs.1,20,000/- (Rent for premises used for sheds/manufacturing facility of the

Company)

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on 08.04.2019

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Juhi Leasing & Finance Ltd.
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.2,04,000/-

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Saraswati Charitable Trust
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1,08,000/-

€) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019

) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Shree Radha Krishna Charitable Trust
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1,86,000/-

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019
) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

s
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9. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Brijeshwari Dharmarth Sansthan
b} Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend
d) Salient terms of the transaction m cluding the value, if any: Rs.2,20.000/-
¢) Date of approval by the Board, ifany: 08.04.2019
£ Amount ;}3;@. s advances, if any: NIL
10. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Bahawar Charitable Trust
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owne i

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividen

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1,74,400/-

g) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019
f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

11. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Interglobal Steels Private Limited
b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of dividend
d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.53,699/-
¢) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

12. a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Kuber Dharmarth Sansthan

b} Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration of div vidend

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.9800/-
-} Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019

f} Amount paid as advances, ifany: NIL

fa—
ik

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Mahawar Dharmarth Sansthan

b) Nature of transaction: Preferential Dividend on shares owned

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive subject to declaration ¢
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¢) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.1,14,000/-
f) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019

2) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Supersigma Alloys & Forggings
Private Limited

b) Nature of transaction: Purchase
¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.474,61,718/-(Purchase of
Goods)

€) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019

) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Nipin Steel Private Limited
b) Nature of transaction: Interest on Unsecured Loan

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.32,868/- (Interest on Unsecured
Loan)

¢) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019
f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Surendra Brothers Engineers Private
Limited
b) Nature of transaction: leasing of immovable property

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive

d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Annual Rent of Rs.96.000/- for
business purpose of the C ompany

¢) Date of approval by the Board, if any: reviewed and approved by the Board on 08.04.2019
1) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

a) Name of the related party and nature of relationship: Sun Source Leafin Private Limited
b) Nature of transaction: Interest on Unsecured Loan

¢) Duration of transaction: Repetitive
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d) Salient terms of the transaction including the value, if any: Rs.7,43,914/- (Interest on
Unsecured Loan)

e) Date of approval by the Board, if any: 08.04.2019

f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

N7 § .
1 Ly o ) /
% _‘,Mf) ) Lo ) .
{Mohinder Kumar Gupta) {(Samir Gupta)
Managing Director Whole Time Director
DIN-00054110 DIN-00054308
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi

Date: 21.09.2020 Date: 21.09.2020
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‘Annexure C’ to Directors’ Report

Extract of Annual Return

FORM NO. MGT Y

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020

& Administration) Rules, 2014,

L REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

(1) of the Company (Management

CIN

U27109DL1963PLC117600

Registration Date

04/07/1963

Name of the Company

M/s Star Wire (India) Limited

Eal el Rt Ee

Category/Sub-category of the
Company

Public Company/Limited By Shares

S.| Address of the Registered
office & contact details

35, Link Road, Lajpat Nagar-1II1, 2" Floor, New Delhi-110024

6.| Whether listed company No

Address & contact
details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

7.| Name,

Indus Portfolio Private Limited, G-65, Bali Nagar, New Delhi-
1100135,
Phone No. 011-47671214/17

I1. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities
contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S. Name and Description of main | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the company
No. | products / services Product/service
i Manufacturing of Metal & Metal | C7 98%

Products

II1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES —

Sl No. Name And Address of | CIN/GLN Holding/ % of shares | Applica
Subsidiary held ble
The Company /Associate Sectio
n
N.A N.A N.A N.A
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VI  A). SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Category-wise Share Holding
Category ef | No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year[As | No. of Shares held at the end of the year[Ason 31- | %
Shareholders on 31-March-2019 Barch-2020 Change
Yo of Yo of | during
Total Total the
Diemat Physical Total Shares Demat Physical Total Shares vear
A. Promoter s
(1) Indian
a) Individuall HUF 15 5050 155 | 57067700 | 9.13,65825 | 32.74 33898125 | 5.74.67.700 | 6.13,65.825 | 3274 0.00
b) Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
¢) State Govi(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil il
43 Bodies Comp. 115335000 | 47757300 | 163092300 | 5843 115335000 | 4.77.57.300 | 163092300 | 5845 il
¢) Banks / F1 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
£} Shares Under
Dispute 24589375% | 000 24589375 | 8.8 34589375 | 0.00 34580375 | 8.81 0.00
Total shareholding
of Promoter (A) 173820500 | 105225000 | 279047560 | 100.00 173822500 | 105225000 | 27.9047.500 | 106.00 0.00
B. Public
Shareholding
. Institutions Nil Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
a) Mutual Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
—
b) Banks / Fl Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
c) Central Govt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
d) State Govi(s) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
ey Venture Capital
Funds Nl Nil Nil Nit Nit nil Nil Nit Nil
I Insurance
Companies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
g) Fils Nl Nil Nil Nil Nil Nib Nil Nil Nil
hy Foreign Venture
Capital Funds Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nii Nl
D Others (specify) | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Sub-total (B)(I):- | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
2. Mon-Tnstitutions
a} Bodies Co
i) indian Nl il Nil Nil Nit Nil il il Nil
ii) Overseas Nif Nil Nil Nil il Nil Nil Nl NiJ
b) Individuals il Nil it Nil il il Nil il Nil
i} Individual
sharsholders
holding nomingl
share capual upio
| Rs. 1 lakh Nt Nit Nt Nil Nil il Nit Nl Ni
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i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share  capital  in
excess of Rs | lakh Nil Nif Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
SEALLES—
¢) Others (specity) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Non Resident N
Indians Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Overseas Corporate LU
Bodies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Foreign Nationals Nil Nil Nil Nt Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit
Clearing Members Nil Nil Nii Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Trusts Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Foreign Bodies - D
R Nil Nii Nit Nil Nil Nil Nil Nit Nil
Sub-total (B)(2):- Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Total Public
Shareholding
B)=(B)1)+ (B)2) Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
C. Shares held by
| Custodian for
. GDRs & ADRs Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nif Nil Nil Nil
. Grand Total
(A+B+(C) 17.38,22.500 10,52,25,000 | 27.90.47.500 100.00 17,38.22.500 10,52,25 600 27.90,47,500 100.00 0.00
| . . o d .
| * Shares under dispute got retransferred to respective original shareholders on 23" April, 2020
i s
| through order of Hon’ble High Court, Delhi.
[
i
|

B) Shareholding of Promoter-

SN Sharcholder’ | Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year Yo chang‘e in
| . shareholding
s Name ‘
I during the
No. of Shares % of total | %of Shares | No. of | % of total | %of year
Shares of | Pledged /| Shares Shares  of | Shares
the encumbered to the Pledged /
company total shares company encumbe
red to
total
shares
Mohinder - )
1 4.20.30,000 15.06 .00 4,20,30,000 15.06 0.00 0.00
Kumar Gupta
2 Samir Gupta 2.68,63,125 9.63 0.00 2,68.,63,125 9.63 0.00 0.00
|3 abhishek 1.58,55.000 5.68 0.00 1.58,55.000 | 5.68 0.00 0.00
Gupta
4 Rekha Gupta 66.12,700 2.37 0.00 66.12,700 2.37 0.00 0.00
Shares Under - , . _ . )
5 . 24589375 8.81 .00 2.45,89,375 8.81 0.00 0.00
Dispute
6 Minal Gupta 5.000 0.00 0.00 5,000 0.00 0.00 0.00
7. Jubi - Leasing [y o0 20000 | 3765 0.00 10.50.70.000 | 37.65 0.00 0.00
& Finance e B o o
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0.00

66.1

Pl
L
ey
e
S

b
L
]

0.60

Supersigma

1,12,90,000

4.08

8.00

1,12,50,006

0.00

0.

Star Wire
{India)
Biomass
Private

Limited

G
oo

60,35.0¢

.t\.)
[

G.00

b
g

.60

0.00

Star Wire
{India)
Electricity
Private
Limited

12,15,000

0.44

0.00

12,15,0606

(.44

0.00

0.00

Ensol
international
LLp

36,150

0.0t

6.00

36,150

0.00

0.00

Padmanabh
Steel &
Trading LLP

1350000

0.48

0.00

1350000

0.00

8.00

SjTea &
Traders LLP

1592000

0.57

0.00

1592000

1.60

0.00

Polylink
Vinimay LLP

1350600

0.48

0.00

1350000

0.00

0.00

Cornflower
Yinimay LLP

1250000

(.45

0.00

1250000

0.00

0.00

Interglobal
Steels Private
Lirnited

4100000

0.00

4100000

1.47

0.00

0.00

Mumet (India)
Private
Limited

7748000

0.00

7748000

2.78

0.00

0.00

Abhinandan
Trafin Private
Limited

16012500

0.00

10012500

0.00

(.00

Nipin Steels
Private
Limited

54311350

0.00

5431150

0.00

0.00

Total

27,80,47,560

3.00

27,00,47,508

0.00

.00

*Interconnected undertaking
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C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

(SN Particulars Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding during thﬂ
_beginning of the year year
No. of shares | % of total No. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
Company Company
At the beginning of the year
27,90,47,500 | 100.00 27,90,47,500 100.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease | - - - e
in  Promoters Shareholding
during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease
(e.g. allotment /transfer /
bonus/ sweat equity etc.)
At the end of the year 27,90,47,500 | 100.00 27,90,47.500 100.00 B

*Interconnected undertaking

| D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
| {Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):

|
I SN For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding
: Shareholders beginning of the year during the Year
[ No. of | % of total No. of | % of total
shares shares of the | shares shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
At the end of the year Nil Nil Nil Nil
E) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

. SN Shareholding of each Directors Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding

and each Key Managerial beginning of the year during the Year
0 Personnel No. of shares | % of total | No. of shares %o of total
| shares of shares of
| the the
!’ Company Company
| At the beginning of the year
| Mohinder Kumar Gupta 4,20,30,000 15.06 4,20,30,000 15.06
|
ll Samir Gupta 2,68,63,125 9.63 2,68,63,125 9.63
i Abhishek Gupta 1.58.55,000 | 5.68 1.58,55,000 | 5.68
Rekha Gupta 66,12,700 2.37 66,12,700 2.37

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
( Promoters Shareholding during the
. year specifying the reasons for
| increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /

transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
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At the end of the year

Mohinder Kumar Gupta 4.20.30,000 15.06 4.20,30,000 15.06
Samir Gupta 2,68,63,125 9.63 2.68,63,125 9.63
Abhishek Gupta 1,58,55,000 5.68 1,58,55,060 5.68
Rekha Gupta 66,12,700 2.37 66,12,700 2.37

V) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due

for payment.

Secured
Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
depusits
Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial vear
i} Principal Amount 367,50,65,151 | 8,10,89,857 - 3,75,61,55,008
ii) Interest due but not paid - 96,48,458 - 06,48 458
iii} Interest accrued but not due - - - -
Total (i+i+iii) 3.67,50,65,151 | 9,07,38,315 - 3,76,58,03,466
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial vear
# Addition 37,18,50,017 | 28397222 | - 40,02,47,239
* Reduction 48.75.87,643 | 3138835 - 49,07,26 478
252,58, 387 - (904,79,239)
Met Change (11,57,37,626)
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
3,55,93,27,525 | 10,39,14,916 | - 3,66,32,42,441

i} Principal Amount

i1} Interest due but not paid

1,20,81,786

- 1,20,81,786

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii)

3,55,93,27,525

11,59.96,702

- 3,67,53,24,227
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total
Amount
Mohinder Samir Abhishek | ---
Kumar Gupta Gupta Gupta |
1 Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions | 66,00.000 P.A 63,00,000 20,40,000 1,49.40,000
contained in section 17(1) of P.A P.A. P.A.
the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites ws 9,90,000 P.A. 9,90,000 ‘i
;1 7(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 P.A
(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961
2 Stock Option - - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - - -
4 Commission 27,50,000 22,00,000 16,50,000 | - 66,00,000
- as % of  profit
- others, specify. ..
S Others, please specify
Total (A) 1,03,40,000 85,00,000 36,90,000 2,25,30,000
Ceiling as per the Act As per Section As per As per
Il of Schedule | Section  II | Section I
\Y of the | of Schedule | of
Companies Act, |V of the | Schedule
2013 Companies |V of the
Act, 2013 Companies
[ Act, 2013
B. Remuneration to other directors
SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
Amount
1 Independent Directors
Fee for attending board committee
meetings
Commission
Others, please specify
Total (1)
2 Other Non-Executive Directors Mrs. Rekha Mrs. Mahima
Gupta Gupta
Fee for attending board committee | 10000/~ 10000/- 20000/-

meetings
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Commission - - -

Others, please specify - - -

Total (2) 10000/~ 10000/~ 20000/
Total (B)=(1+2) 10000/- 10000/- 20000/-
Total Managerial | - - 2,25,50,000/-
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
M/ MANAGER/WTD
SN | Particulars of | Key Managerial Personnel
Remuneration
CEO s CFO** Co0 Total
1 {sross salary
(a) Salary as per | 1,71,41,918.00 | 25,74,114.00 | 47,99,925.00 $0,49,470.00
provisions contained in
section 17(1)} of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
{b) Yalue of perguisites | - 600 - 600.00
w/s 17(2) Income-tax
Act, 1961
(¢} Profits in lieu of | - - - - -
salary under section
17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961
2 Stock Option - - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - - -
4 Commission - - - - -
- as % of profit - - - -
others, specify...
5 Orthers, please specify - - - - -
Total 1,71,41,918.00 | 25,74,114.00 | 48,00,525.00 | 90,49,470.00 3,35.66,027.00
#* Mr R.P.Bansal worked as CFO From 01-04-2019 to 09-05-2019, who left untimely for the
heavenly abode. Mr B.K.Mishra appointed as CFO from 30-07-2019 of the Company. Above
remuneration includes amount paid to both during the Financial Year 2019-20.
VIL PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section  of  the | Brief Details of | Authority | Appeal
Companies Act Drescription Penalty /) RD /| made,
Punishment/ NCLT/ if  any
Compounding COURT] {give
fees imposed Details)
A . COMPANY
Penalty N.A M.A. N.A. N.A. MLAL
Punishment A NA. N.A. M.A. ML A
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Compounding N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
B. DIRECTORS Mr. Mohinder Kumar Gupta (Managing Director)

Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding | N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Punishment N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
Compounding N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. J N.A.

Annexure D’ to Directors’ Report

Disclosure pursuant to Rule 5 (2) of Com

Personnel) Rules, 2014

Dr. S.K. Goel (CEO)*

panies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial

Designation | Remunerati | Nature of Qualificatio | Date of | Age/ Last % of | Whether such
on Received | employme | n & | commence | D.O.B employment equit | employee is
nt Experience | ment of y relative of any
employme share | Director or
nt s manager
held
Executive 1,71,41,918.00 | Permanent | B.E. M.E., | 01-01- 62 7 years with | Nil No
Director Ph.D (Met.) 1991 years/ M/s U.P.Steel,
(30-04- | Muzaffarnagar
1958)
Exp. - 39 2 years with
Years M/s Perfect
Engineering
Products  (P)
Lid.
Mr. S.S. Virdi (CO0)
Designation | Remunerati | Nature Qualificatio | Date of | Age/ Last % of | Whether such
on Received | of n & | commence | DOB employment equit | employee is
employ Experience | ment of y relative of any
ment employme share | Director or
nt s manager
held
Chief 90,49,470.00 | Permane | B.Tech. 12-08-2013 10 years 1n | Nil No
Operating nt (Met.), Jindal
Officer MB.A stainless Steel
Exp. - 36 3 years in Star
Years Wire
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3 years
Dansteel Engg

I year in Star
Wire

1 year in Steel
Stripl year in
W.M. Forge

7  years in
Oswal Steel

3  year in
HM.T

I year in
Escorts 1.td

* With heavy heart it is being informed that Dr. S.K. Goel, CEO of the Company left untimely for
heavenly abode on 22/08/2020 .
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FORM No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2020
(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

To,

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

35, LINK ROAD, 2ND FLOOR,

LAJPAT NAGAR-III NEW DELHI-110024

I'have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
CIN: U27109DL1963PLC117600 (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon,

Based on my verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of
secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit
period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020, complied with statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the company has proper Board processes and
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter.

1. I'have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 315t March, 2020
according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act] and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made
there under;

(iif) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there
under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
there under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings

er the Securities and




7

Ly

Lo

™

T

g)

h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of
Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (Not applicable to the company
during the audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992 (Not applicable to the company during the audit
periodj;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not applicable to
the company during the audit period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and
dealing with clients;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009 (Not applicable to the company during the audit
period); and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998 (Not applicable to the company during the audit
period};

(vi) The Other Laws applicable specifically to the Company are:

a} E-waste (Management & Handling) Rules, 2011.

b) Other Labour Laws & Social Security Laws.

¢} Environmental Laws

d) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013

. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

- During the period under review the company has complied with the provisions of the
Acts, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines mentioned above.

1. [ further report that:

(a) Board is having the required balance of Rotational, Non-Rotational, Independent and

~

ey
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1 Director and the composition of Board is as per provisions of the Act

£

on or

5

before 31/03/2020.
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(b) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through unanimously, and therefore, dissenting members’
views are not required to be captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

5. I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

6. I'further report that during the audit period there has not been any such activity having a
major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws rules,

regulations, guidelines etc.

This report be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-‘A’ and
forms an integral part of this report.

For RK & ASSOCIATES
(Company Secretaries)

Rtz

CS Rakesh Kumar
(M. No.: FCS 7695, CoP No.- 8553}
UDIN: FO07695B000815909




To,

Annexure “A”

The Members of

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

35, LINK ROAD, 2ND FLOOR,

LAJPAT NAGAR-III NEW DELHI-110024

faid

iy

6.

ek

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Co mpany.
My responsibility is to £Xpress an opinion on these zafséi records based on my audit.

[ have followed the audit practices and processes as are apar{}ﬁzwe 1o obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The verification was
done on test i‘}{i‘; Is to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretaris | records. | believe
that the process and practices. [ followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

I'have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of
accounts of the C@mpan}n

herever required, I have obtained the management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and h happening of events, etc.

The compliance of the pr(}u« ons of corporate and other app%ifz ble laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsi ibility of management. My examination was limited to the
verification of procedures on test basis

The Secretarial Audit report is neither a ‘?ssuraf;se as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the effi icacy or e '? ctiveness with which the man; agement has conducted

the affairs of the O ompany.

During the course of my examination of the books and records of “the Company, that has
been carried out in accordance with %n&:azgsé raccepted practices in India, I have neither
come across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, nor the C{};szpzz;‘zy has noticed
and reported any such case duris ng é}e year and accordingly the Company has not informed
me of any such ca

or RK & ASSOCIATES
fompany Secretaries)

gaf"'

(CS Rakesh Kum har)
{M.No. FCs 7695, é’ P. No.: 8553)
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‘Annexure F’ to Directors’ Report

ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES (CSR) ACTIVITIES

1. Brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy including overview of projects or programs

proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and pProjects

or programs.

The Company’s CSR policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company under the web-

link: http://wwwstarwire.in/CSRPoIicv.pdf

2. Composition of the CSR Committee

The composition of the CSR Committee is as under:
Mrs. Rekha Gupta, Chairperson

Mr. Pankaj Jain, Member

Mr. Abhishek Gupta, Member

Mrs. Rekha Sharma, Secretary

The Committee met 4 (four Times) during the year under review.

3. Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years

Average net profit: Rs.46,50,87,640/-

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2% of the average net profit of the last three financial years)

The Company during the financial year 2019-20 is required to spend Rs.93,01,753/- towards

CSR.
| Particulars Amount
f_f\verage net profit for last three financial years 46,50,87,640
Prescribed CSR expenditure 2% of Average net profit for last
three financial years
Amount CSR to be spent for financial year 93.01,753
Amount CSR spent for financial year 15,29,882.07
Amount spent in local area 15,29.882.07
Amount unspent CSR - 158.38,971.35 **
o Particulars Amount P
Opening Balance 80,67,100.42

(*+) Provision for the F.Y 2019-20 93,01,753.00
}i-) Expenditure made during F.Y 2019-20 15,29,882.07

Closin% Amount to be s?ent 158,38,971.35
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5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

Total amount spent for the year: Rs.1529882.07/-

Amount unspent, if any: Rs.158,38971.35/-
Manner in which amount spent/provisioned during the financial year is detailed below:

Amount
spent
. . . . Amount Spent Cﬁﬁ}&%gﬁ{ive directly
S.NO| CSR Project or Sector in which the project s . Expenditure uplo jor
. e . n the Project .
. activity identified | covered the reporting through
or programine . .
period implemen
ting
Agency
Amount of Rs.
Coversd under item {iii} in 1,93,60,000/
schedule VII, Promoting Gender spent by way of
equality, empowering women, donation of a Througha
| Old Age setting up homes and hostels for NI piece of land for | Implemen
Home/Dharmshala | women and orphans, setting up T setting up Cld ting
old age homes, day care centres Age Home/ Agency
and such other facilities for Dharmshala
senior citizens.
Covered under item (1},
eradicating hunger, poverty and
malnutrition, promoting
preventive health care and
sanitation and Rs. 10,94.900/-
making available safe drinking
water:, {Indirectly)
(ii) promoting education,
including special education and
employment enhancing vocation
Enhancement of skills Rs. 434982.07/- )
Vocation skills especially among children, Hs. through
2 © : ST fmple
“ | among woman & womer, ¢ ié m{ and the (Directly) 5470508.47 implemen
children differently abled and livelihood hng
. Agencies
enhancemer z%i ®
projects; (iii) promoting gender
equality, empowering women,
setting up homes and hostels for
women and
orphans; setting up old age
homes, day care centres and
iuab oi%‘iz':f facilities for senior
Cifiz and
measy ?or mé! Wyw
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equality, empowering women,
setting up homes and hostels for
women and orphans; setting up
old age homes, day care centres
and such other facilities for
senior citizens and
measures for reducing
inequalities faced by socially
and economically backward
oups;

Rs. 15,29,882.07 | Rs. 2,48,30.508.47

Reasons for not spending the prescribed CSR expenditures:

The company is already engaged in the activities covered under the provisions of CSR directly as well as
indirectly as in the past. To be specific the company has incurred Rs. 4,34,982.07/- during the year on the
CSR activities directly towards enhancement of vocational skills for inhabitants residing near
manufacturing facilities in the following manner-

» Computer Training center for boys

» Sewing Training center for girls in village

Further the company has also incurred Rs.10,94,900.00/- on the CSR activities indirectly by way of
donating funds to the recognized charitable trust as per details below:-

> ASSOCIATION FOR THE WELFARE OF HANDICAPPED (Regd.)
» Shirdi Sai Baba Temple Society

» Educational -cum-Vocational Association for the Disabled (Regd.)

» Prayas Social Welfare Society (Regd.)

» NATIONAL ASSOCIATION FOR BLIND

» FIA CHARITABLE SOCIETY

> Navchetna Trust

> Sewa Bharti

Furthermore, as informed company is in the process of setting up an Old Age Home/Dharamshala in the
Village- Chhainsa, a piece of land owned by the company has already been donated for the said purpose.
The construction work could not be started because necessary permissions/approvals have not yet been
granted by the concerned departments/Govt. bodies.

Construction work will be started as soon as the permissions are granted, and the fund lying unutilized
under CSR will be utilized.
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7. Responsibility Statement :

It is hereby affirmed that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR
objectives and Policy of the Company.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 21.09.2020

NI o Y

{(Mohinder Kumar Gupta) {Rekha Gupta)
Managing Director Chairman CSR Committee

DIN-60054110 DIN-00054073
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PRYD & ASSOCIATES 4831, Govind Lane, Ist Floor
Chartered Accountants 24 Ansari Road, Darya Ganj
New Delhi-110002
PHONE: (011)23258183

P M Mittal
B.Com, FCA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Star Wire (India) Limited

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Star Wire (India) Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Profit and
Loss Statement (including other comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and
the statement of change in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone
financial statements, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and profit and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s management and Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated
in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation
and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the

financial position, financial performance, cash flows and change in equity in{tﬁé‘f&x\
fen . o)

Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted iﬁ%g;jdia
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133:0f fpﬁ%ﬁf;ﬁ,

Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amend T
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This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
control that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management and Board of Directors are
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness {}f
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. "
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* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of
the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best  of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by

the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Statement (including c:»ﬂf’ngNH
comprehensive income), the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of C ot
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant| &éfﬁ%«%
of account; ?f —

o
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d. In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

€. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2020, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020, from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report.

3. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014,
as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

(1) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation as at March 3 [,
2020 on its financial position in its financial statements as referred to in Note
32 to the financial statements;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses: and

(iif)  There was no fund which required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

4. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section
197(16):
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to
any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under section 197 of the Act. The
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under section 197(16)
which are required to be commented upon by us.

For PRYD & Associates

Chartered Accounggims: 453
FRN: ;{ N \¢
Place: New Delhi Y \g) /.

Dated: 21/09/2020 (P.M. Mittal)
Membership Number: 094667
Partner
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“ANNEXURE A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors” Report to the members of the
Compainy on the financial statements for the year ended 31% March 2020, we report that:

I.

)

In respect of its Fixed Assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b)  As explained to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verified by the
management in a phased periodical manner, which in our opinion is reasonable,
having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

¢) As per the information and explanations provided to us, title deeds of
immovable propeitics included in Property, Plant and Equipment are held in
the name of the Company.

In our opinion, the inventories have been physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals and as explained to us no material discrepancies
were noticed on physical verification.

As informed, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms or other parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Act. Accordingly clauses 3(iii) (a & b) of the Companies (Auditor’s
Report) Order, 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information & the explanations given to us, the
Company has not granted any loans, made investments and provided guarantees and
securities under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended) from the public.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company has maintained proper cost records as specified by the Central
Government under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to the
manufacturing activities, and we are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed
cost records have been made and maintained.

[n respect of statutory dues:
a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in
the books of accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service
Tax, duty of custom, Value added tax, Cess and other material statutory S
have been regularly deposited during the year by the company wi
appropriate authorities. '
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According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amount payable in respect of aforesaid dues were in arrears, as at March 31,
2020 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

b) According to the information & explanations given to us there are certain
disputed statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of disputed
matters pending before appropriate authorities are as under:

Sr Name of Nature of the| Amou Period to| Forum where
No. | the statute Dues nt (Rs. | which the | dispute is
in amount pending
I.acs) relates
1. Haryana Local Area 66.84 Various years | Hon’ble
VAT Act Development (66.84) | from 2004-05 | Supreme Court
Tax (LADT) to 2007-08
2. [ncome Demand on 69.02 various years | Assstt. / CIT,
Tax  Act,| additions & (69.02) | from 2002-03 | CIT(A), ITAT
1961 Interest to 2008-09
3. Central Excise Duty 31.09 various years | With various
Excise Act, (31.09) | from 1988-89 | appellate
1944 to 2014-15 authorities &
Hon’ble
Supreme Court
4, Custom Custom  duty | 177.00 | 2006-07 Dy
Act, 1962 against (177.0 Commiissioner
Advance 0)
License
Total Rs 343.95 Lacs (Rs 343.95 Lacs)

10.

¢) According to the information & explanations given to us there are no amounts
which are required to be transferred to the investor education and protection fund
in accordance with the relevant provisions of Section 125 of the Companies Act,
2013 and rules thereunder.

Based on our verification and according to the information & explanations given by
the management, the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to its banks.

In our opinion, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which the loans
were raised.

Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the Financial Statements and According to the information and
explanations provided by the management, we have neither come across any
instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of such case by the Management. g




11.

12.

13.

14,

16.

Place: New Delhi Kot
Dated: 21/09/2020 “(P.M.

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of
Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company’s transactions with its related party are in compliance with Sections 177
and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or persons connected with him as referred to Section 192 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and hence reporting under clause (xv) of Paragraph 3 of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to information and explanations provided to us, the
Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934

For PRYD & Associats

Membership Number: 094
Partner
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“ANNEXURE B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Annexure B referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 3 I* March 2020, we report that:

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING UNDER CLAUSE (i) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Star Wire
(India) Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL  FINANCIAL
CONTROLS

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. -~ =




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

MEANING OF [INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For PRYD & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 1 }626N

Place: New Delhi '
Dated: 21/09/2020 (P.M. Mittal)
Membership Number: 094667 -

Partner



STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MAR 2020

(Rs in Lakhs)
. As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars Notes 2020 2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, Piant and Equipmant 1 46427.85 37947 .60
Capital Work-in-Progress 1 2487.23 g747.21
intangible assets under development 1 335.08 182.31
Financlal Assets
(i} Investments 2 130.04 144.12
{ity Loans 3 1068.55 757.71
(iii} Others 4 111.29 87.71
Other non-current assets 5 172.70 400.11
Total Non-Current Assets 50732.72 49266.78
Current assets
Inventories 6 17869.26 16283.28
Financial Assets
(i) Trade receivables 7 19080.99 19339.43
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 8 149.57 128.57
(iii) Bank balances other than (i} above 9 354.41 237.45
(iv) Loans 10 47.15 51.82
(v) Others 11 943.63 610.18
Other current assets 12 1291.15 1672.80
Total Current Assets 39736.16 38323.53
Total Assets 90468.88 87590.30
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 13 2790.48 2790.48
Other Equity 14 37473.98 33347.25
Total Equity 40264.46 36137.72
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 16054.78 16497.06
Provisions 16 732.90 642.52
Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 17 4367.56 5496.98
Other non-current liabilities 18 791.19 796.70
Total Non-Curren’ Liabilities 21946.43 23433.27
Current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 17619.52 19066.64
(i) Trade payables 20 4596.76 4197.67
(iiiy Other financial liabilities 21 4097.68 4126.94
Other current habilities 22 1541.31 241.50
Provisions 23 402.72 386.55
Total Current Liabilities 28258.00 28019.31
Total Liabilities 50204.43 51452.58
Total Equity and Liabilities 90468.88 875590.30
Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1032

As per our Report of even date:

For PRYD & Associates

(CAP. M. Mittal)

Partner

Membership No.: 094667
Place: New Delhi

Date: September 21,2020

PR
%ﬂ JALF
{Binod Kumar Mishra)~ *
Chief Finance Officer

(Rekhg Sharma)
Sr. DGM Legal & Company Secretary
M No: FCS 6428

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Mohinder Kumar Gupta)
Managing Director
DIN - 00054110

{Samir Gupta)
Whole Time Director
DIN - 00054308
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STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MAR 2020

{Rs in Lakhs)
. Current Year Previous Year
Particulars Notes
2019-20 2018-19
INCOME
. Revenue from operations 24 56170.84 61281.55
il. Operating Income 25.a 1082.60 881.96
il Non Operating Income 25b 217.36 94.20
IV Total Revenue (I+ii+ill) 57480.80 62257.71
V Expenses
Cost of material consumed 26 19884.74 21410.07
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 27 0.00 0.82
Change in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress 28 (1812.42) (522.19)
and Stock-in-Trade
Employee benefits expense 29 4803.36 4614.53
Financial Costs 30 2758.08 2423.85
Depreciation and amortization expense 1711147 1572.53
Other expenses
- Manufacturing expenses 31a 23178.90 24771.07
- Administrative Expenses 31b 2012.18 222417
- Selling & Distribution Expenses 31c 1171.23 735.60
VI Total expenses 53707.23 57230.44
VIl Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional ltems and tax (IV-Vl) 3773.57 5027.27
Vill Exceptional items 0.00 0.00
IX' Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (VII+VIill) 3773.57 5027.27
X Extraordinary ltems 0.00 0.00
Xl Profit /{Loss) before tax (IX+X) 3773.57 5027.27
Xl Tax expense:
- Current Tax 17 525.31 1089.38
- Deferred Tax 17 (1109.77) 747.01
- Income Tax Expenses of Previous F.Y. 79.84 0.00
Xill Profit / (Loss} for the year (XI-XIl} 427819 3190.88
XIV Other Comprehensive Income
ltems that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss (78.10) 18.69
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss 19.66 (6.53)
ltemns that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss 0.00 0.00
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss 0.00 0.00
XV Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 4219.75 3203.04
Earning Per Equity Share of face value of ¥ 1 each:
- Basic: 1.53
- Diluted: 1.53
Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1t032
As per our Report of even date: For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
[ N
For PRYD & Associates E\W«g\
Chartered Accourita
Registration e {Mohinder Kumar Gupta)
% Lw.é{(f Managing Director
st DIN - 00054110
(Binod Kumar Mishra)
Chief Finance Officer
(CAP. M. Mittal} il ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, =
Partner
Membership No.: 094667 (Rekha Sharma) {Samir Gupta)
Ptace: New Delhi Sr. DGM Legal & Company Secretary Whole Time Director

Date: September 21,2020 M No: FCS 6428 DIN - 00054308
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STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH.2020

{Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars Current Year Previous Year
2019-20 2018-19
Cash Flow Statement:
A Cash flow from operating activities:
Net Profit Before Tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 3773.57 5027.27
Adjusted for:
(Profit} / Loss on Sale / Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) 1.38 1.84
Depreciation 1711147 1572.53
Provisions for CSR (93.02) (80.85)
interest income (182.92) (51.10)
Finance Costs 2758.08 2423.85
Operating profit before working capital changes 7968.24 8893.54
Adjusted for:
(Increase) / decrease in Trade and Other Receivable 258.44 (474.70)
Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabilities (406.11) 251.49
increase/ {decrease) in other liabilities 1294.29 354.30
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 42.54 (6.98)
{Increase) / decrease in inventories (1585.98) (881.97)
Decrease/ (increase) in loans (306.18) (265.74)
Decrease/ (increase) in other current financial assets (263.64) 220.76
Decrease/ (increase) in other current assets 381.65 (1295.68)
(Increase) / decrease in Other Non Current Assets 0.59 3.77
Decrease/ (increase) in other non-current financial assets (23.58) 42.78
increase / {(decrease) in Trade and other Payables 399.09 {949.83)
Cash generated from operations 7759.37 5891.73
Income tax paid 674.97 1043.15
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A): 7084.40 4848.58
B  Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of fixed assets (3439.27) (12280.75)
Capital advance/Capital creditors (net) (380.94) 1129.75
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 355.08 19.61
(Profit) / Loss on Sale / Discard of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net) (1.36) (1.84)
Bank balance other than cash & cash equilents (116.96) 48.49
Interest income 182.92 51.10
Net cash from / (used in) investing activities (B): (3400.52) (11033.64)
C  Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from tong-term borrowings (net) 542.33 6992.84
Proceeds from short-term borrowings (net) (1447.12) 1394.26
Proceeds/Payment Loan (Assets)-Non Current - 0.00
Borrowing-Current (Net) - 0.00
Interest paid (2758.08) (2423.85)
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities (C): (3662.87) 5963.25
Net increase / {(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 21.01 (221.81)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 128.57 350.38
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 149.57 128.57
* Comprises:
Cash on hand 24 .59 20.93
Balances with banks
{i} In current accounts 114.87 9.77
(i) In EEFC accounts 10.11 §7.87
149.57 128.57

Notes:

These earmarked account balances with banks can be utilised only for the specific identified purposes.

See gocompanying notes to the financial slatements

As per our Report of even date:

For PRYD & Associates

Chartered Accgue

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

B _— (Mohinder Kumar Gupta)
o %%{"”‘vg ;W Managing Director

. ' p— DIN - 00054110

A (Binod Kumar Mishra) ~

/ Chief Finance Officer

{CAP. M. Mitt
Partner
fMiembership No. 094867
Place: New Delhi

Date: September 21,2020

(Samir Gupta)
Whole Time Director
DIN - 00054308

(Rekha Sharma)
Sr. DGM Legal & Company Secretary
M Na: FCS 8428



STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020:

A Corporate information

Star Wire (india) Limited (SWIL}, a mini stee! plant is engaged in manufacturing of castings, forging and rolled products from alloy steels,
super alloy steel, high grade stainless stesi and special steels which find application in diversified engineering fields like automobiles,
aerospace, super critical power plants etc. SWIL originally incorporated in 1963 was taken over by the present management in 1981.

Name: Star Wire (India) Limited (SWIL)

Date of Incorporation @ July 4, 1863

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) issued by MCA: U27109DL1963PLC 117800

Constitution: Limited Company

industry: Engineering / Mini Steel Plant

Registered & Corporate Office:-

Registered Office —~ 35, Link Road, 2nd Flocr, Lajpat Nagar-il},

New Delhi-110024

Project sites

Plant I

21/4, Mile Stone, Mathura Road, Ballabgarh,

Faridabad, (Haryana)

Plant il

Village Chhainsa, Ballabgarh, Faridabad, (Haryana)

B Significant accounting policies:

B.1

(b)

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention, except for certain Fixed Assets which are carried
at revalued amounts and certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value. The financial statements are presented in
indian rupees (%), rounded off to the nearest rupees in lakhs.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting standards (Ind AS), including the rules
notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates and include amounts added on
revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price, borrowing cost and any cost
directly atiributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the assets.

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment are added to its book value only if they increase the future
economic benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use are disclosed under Capital Work-in-Progress.

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment is provided on Straight Line Method (SLM). Depreciation is provided based on useful life of
the assets as prescribed in Schedule |i to the Companies Act, 2013 except in respect of the foliowing assets, where useful life is different
than those prescribed in Schedule Ii;

Particular Depreciation
Property, Plant and Equipment Over its useful life considered as 30 years as technically assessed
Iron & Steel Industries - Rolling Mill Rolls Over its useful life considered as one year as technically assessed

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. For new projects, for direct expenses and direct overheads including interest on Borrowed funds for the
acquisition of Assets are capitalized till the assets are ready for intended use.

intangible Assets

Separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Finite-life intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected usefu! lives.

Intangible assets which are not ready for their intended use are disclosed as 'Intangible assets under development'.
A summary of amortisation / depletion policies applied to the Company’s Intangible Assets to the extent of depreciable amount is as follows:

Particular Amortisation / Depletion
Computer Software Over a period of 5 years
Others Over the period of agreement of right to use

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for Intangible Assets with a finite useful life are reviewed at each reporting date.
Research and Development Expenses!

Company has not incurred any expense under this head during this Financial Year. However, as a matter of policy Revenue expenditure on
research and development is charged to the Profit and Loss Statement under the natural head of account in the year in which it is incurred
and capital expenditure on research and development is accounted for as the normal capital expenditure.

Finance Cost:

Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to
the interest cost. Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost
of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. All other borrowing
costs are charged to the Profit and Loss Statement in the period in which they are incurred.




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020:

(e}

(@

(h

i)

0

fnventories:
Finished and semi-finished products produced and purchased by the Company are carried at lower of cost or net realizable value. Work-in-
progress is carried at cost. Cost has been ascertained under retall method Le. selling price less Gross profit because the company is
engaged in the business as manufacturer of tallored items as per orders received. The range of these tallored items is very wide in terms of
quality, value and also quantity. To be very specific the value of item each in the range of ~ Rs. 50/- per Kg to ~ Rs. 3000/~ per Kg. In view of
this the company has opted to value the closing stock applying Retail method being only appropriate method on the given facts and
circumstances.
Raw materials & Components are carried at lower of cost and net realizable value.
Stores and spare parts are carried at cost, Necessary provision is made and charged to revenue in case of identified obsolete and non-
moving items.
Cost of raw materials, Components, stores and spares, trading and other products are determined on FIFO method.
Employee Benefits:
Short-term employee benefits are recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Profit and Loss Statement of the year in which
the related service is rendered.
Post employment and other long term employee benefits are recognised as an expense in the Profit and Loss Statement for the year in which
the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognised at the present value of the amounts payable determined using actuarial
valuation techniques. Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post employment and other fong term benefits are charged to the Profit and
Loss Statement, The Company pays gratuity to the employees who have completed five years of service with the Company at the time of
resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act
1972.
The provisions towards accrued leave and post-retirement benefits to employees / legal heirs of the deceased employees under the Employees’
Family Benefit Scheme, are computed at the time of payment on actual basis, based on Company’s Policies. Thus IND-AS-18 has been
complied with.
Tax Expenses:
The tax expense for the period comprises of current tax and deferred income tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss.
i) Current Tax: Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the income Tax
authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted at the Balance sheet date.
iiy Deferred Tax: Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial
Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the fiability is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
Foreign Currency Transactions:
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction or that
approximates the actual rate at the date of the settlement of the transaction.
Monetary assets & liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are reported at the same rates. Items which are covered by
forward exchange contracts are also reported at the same rates and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognised over the life of the
contract, Non-monetary items are carried at cost. Management is of the view that the adjustment on account of differences in exchange rates
at the year end is very nominal and will not affect the basic information reported in this statement.
Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognised in the Profit and Loss
Statement, except in case of long term liabilities, where they relate to acquisition of Fixed Assets, in which case they are adjusted to the
carrying cost of such assets.
Revenue Recognition:
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery
of the consideration is probable, the associated cost can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing effective control or managerial
involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performance of agreed contractual task has been completed.
Revenue from operations is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined
terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.
Interest Income from a Financial Assets is recognised using effective interest rate method.
Financial Instruments:
(a) Financial Assets:
All Financial Assets are recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of Financial
Assets, which are not at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL), are adjusted to the fair vaiue on initial recognition. Purchase and sale
of Financial Assets are recognised using trade date accounting.
Investments in unquoted & quoted equity
Non Current investments in equity shares, quoted & unquoted, are stated at market & book value respectively.
(b} Financial Liabilities:
All Financial Liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of borrowings, net of directly attributable cost. Fees of recurring nature are
directly recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.
Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company uses derivative financial instruments presently forwards & options to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into.
Any gains or losses on the close of the transaction are taken directly to Statement of Profit and Loss.
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet.
Earnings per Share:
The earnings considered in ascertaining the Company’s Earnings per Share (EPS) comprise the net profit after tax. The number of shares
used in computing basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year.




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020:

{m} Provisions & Contingent Liabilities:

(n)

(o)

1]

(@)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.
Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present
obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outflow of resources or where a reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.
Impairment of Non-Financial Assets - Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets
The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets or group of Assets, called Cash Generating Units (CGU) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of an
asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.
Use of Estimates:
The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statemenis are continuously evaluated by the Company and are based
on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the Company believes to be
reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the
results are known/ materialised.
The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide
additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date.
Government Grants:
Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.
Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and
are credited to Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of refated assets and presented within other income.
Classification of Assets and Liabilities:
Scheduls i to the Companies Act, 2013 requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non-current.
1. An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(if) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(iii) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) It is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-current.
II. A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i) It is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

(ii) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(iii) it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
All liabilities other than current liabilities shall be classified as non-current.

C Critical Accounting Judgments And Key Sources Of Estimation Uncertainty

The preparation of the Company’s Financial Statements requires management to make judgement, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilittes and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could resuit in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in next financial years.

(a)

(b

—

{c

—

(d)

Depreciation / Amortisation and useful lives of Property Plant and Equipment / Intangible Assets:
Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible Assets are depreciated / amortised over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the
amount of depreciation / amortisation to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on the
Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation / amortisation
for future periods is revised if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

Recoverability of Trade Receivables:

Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of overdue trade receivables and determining whether a provision against those
receivables is required. Factors considered include the credit rating of the counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments
and any possible actions that can be taken to mitigate the risk of non-payment.

Provisions:

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting from past
operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability
requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of
provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, the
Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assetf’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or Cash Generating Units
{CGU's) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or a groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

in assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account, if no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model! is used.
impairment of Financial Assets:

The impairment provisions for Financial Assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. The Company
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Companys past history,
conditions as well as forward fooking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

Note - 2: Investments - Non-current
INVESTMENTS. AT FVTOCI
- In Fully Paid Equity Shares:
Quoted:
24500 Shares of ¥ 2/- each in Supreme Commercial
Enterprises Lid, Delhi
500 Shares of 10/~ each in Auto Pins (1) Ltd, Delhi

Unguoted:
30000 Shares of  2/- each in Eagle International Ltd, Delhi

24000 Shares of  2/- each in Juhi Leasing & Finance Ltd,
Delhi
72000 Shares of 2 10/- each at a premium of Rs 80/~ in
Star Wire (1) Engineering Lid, Delhi
4400 Shares of ¥ 10/- each in Star Wire (I} Engineering
Ltd, Delhi

Note - 3: Non-Current Loans (Unsecured, considered good)
Security and other deposits
Loan to Employees

Note - 4: Other Non-Current Financial Assets (Unsecured, considered good)

Bank Deposit with more than 12 months maturity

Note - 5: Other non-current assets (Unsecured, considered good)
Capital advances to other than related parties
Balances with government authorities

CENVAT credit receivable

Note - 6: Inventories
Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods (Including Goods lying in godowns outside India)
Stock-in-trade (acquired for trading)
- At Delhi Office
Stores and spares

64.89 64.43
0.04 0.04
3.53 3.46
244 2.44

59.15 73.76

130.04 144.12
1064.09 751.48
4.46 6.22
1068.55 757.71
111.29 87.71
111.29 87.71
172.70 399.52
0.00 0.59
172.70 400.11
3179.56 3733.89
2649.32 1253.05
9996.83 9578.36
0.00 2.32
2043.56 1715.67
17869.26 16283.28




STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

(Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Note - 7- Trade receivables {Unsecured and Considered Good)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 2507.28 1854.92
Others 16573.71 17484.51
19080.99 19339.43
Note: Trade receivables include debts due from:
Private comparnies in which any director is a director or member 695.43 1399.59
695.43 1399.59
Note - 8: Cash and cash equivalents
(i} Cash & Bank balances:
Cash on hand 24.59 20.93
Balances with banks
(i} In current accounts 114.87 9.77
(i) In EEFC accounts 10.11 97.87
149.57 128.57
Note - 9:Bank balances other than Note - 8 above
In earmarked accounts
(i) In fixed deposit accounts 354.41 237.45
354.41 237.45

(i) The balances are denominated and held in Indian rupees.
(i) Earmarked balances with bank represents balances held for unpaid dividends and margin money against issue of bank
guarantees & letter of credits.

Note - 10: Loans - Current {Unsecured and Considered Good)

Loans and advances to employees 47 .15 51.82
47.15 51.82

Note - 11: Other Financial Assets - Current
Balances with government authorities

(i) Goods & Service Tax receivable 300.32 0.00
(i) VAT credit receivable 6.06 14.27
(iii) Duty Draw Back credit receivable 130.10 158.58
(iv) Advance income tax (net of provisions) 507.14 437.33

943.63 610.18

Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision})

At start of year 437.33 483.55
Charge for the year - Current Tax 525.31 1089.38
Tax paid (Net) during the year 595.13 1043.15
At end of year 507.14 437.33
Note - 12: Other current assets (Unsecured and Considered Good)
Interest accrued but not received 0.00 1.07
Prepaid expenses 157.88 154.65
Advances to Suppliers
To related parties 716.30 615.00
To other than related parties 416.96 902.09

1291.15 1672.80




STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Note - 13: Share Capital
AUTHORISED:
29.00.00,000 Equity Shares of T 1/- each 2900.00 2800.00
128,06.00,000) ty Shares of T 17- each)
5 00 ion Curmuiative Redeemabie Praference Share of T 10/- Each” 80000 &800.00
60,00,000) 4% Non Cumulative Redeemabie Prefersnce Share of T 10/- Each”
3500.00 3560.60
ED & PAID UP:
Shares of ¥ 1/- each fully paid up 2780.48 2790.48
ty Shares of € 1/~ each fully paid up
2790.48 2790.48
(i} Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:
As at 31 March, 2020 As at 31 March, 2018
Class of shares / Name of sharehoider Number of % held Number of % heid
shares held °ne shares held
Equity shares with voting rights
Mohinder Kumar Gupta 42030000 15.06% 42030000 15.08%
Juht Leasing & Finance Limited 105070000 37.85% 105070000 37.65%
S Supta 26863125 9.63% 26863125 9.83%
Abhishek Gupta 15855000 5.68% 16855000 5.88%
Shares under dispute between two individual Share holders 24589375 8.81% 24589375 8.81%
Total 214407500 76.84% 214407500 76.84%
(i} The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below :
Particulars As at 31 March, 2020] As at 31 March, 2019]
| No. of Shares | No. of Shares |
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 279047500 279047500
Addition / Reduction during the year Q 9
279047500 279047500

Equity Shares at the end of the year

(i) The rights, powers and preferences relating to share capital and the qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereof are contained in the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. The principal rights are as below:

Ordinary Shares of Re 1 each

{a) In respect of every Ordinary Share (whether fully paid or partly paid), voting right shall be in the same proportion as the capital paid up on such
Ordinary Share bears to the total paid up Ordinary Capital of the Company.

(b) The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except
in case of interim dividend.

(¢} In the event of liquidation, the shareholders of Ordinary Shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

Note - 14: Other Equity
Capital reserve:

As per last Balance Sheet 50.00 50.00
General Reserves:
As per last Balance Sheet 47583 475.83
Revaluation Reserves:
As per last Balance Sheet 617.42 617.42
Securities premium reserve:
As per last Balance Sheet 7224.88 722488
Retained Earnings:
As per last Balance Sheet 24983.1 21883.09
Add: Profit for the year 427819 3180.88
Less: Appropriations
Transfer to Provisions for C8R 93.02 80.85
Closing balance 29178.29 24993.11
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI):
As per last Balance Sheet (13.99) (26.15)
Add: Movement in OC1 {Net} during the year (58.44) 12.16
72.43 (13.99)

Total 37473.98 33347.25




Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

{Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2019

Note - 15: Borrowings
{a) Secured

(i} Term Loans: @

- HDFC Bank Limited

- Axis Bank Limited

- Federal Bank

- Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited

(i} Vehicle Loansg: #

(b} Unsecured

- Hdfc Bank Ltd Afc Auto Loan

{iy From related parties:

(i} 4% Non ©

Corporate Loans:

- M/s Nipin Steel Pvt Limited

- M5 Sun Source Leafin Pvi Limited
Other than Corporate Loans:

- Shri Abhishek Gupta

- Shri Mohinder Kumar Gupta

- Shri Samir Gupta

- Smt. Rekha Gupta

- Smt. Mahima Gupta

- Shri Sita Ram Gupta

Bad, u,

fative f

Prefer

Share of ¥ 10/- Each*

4% Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Share of ¥ 10/- Each™

Note:@

1.Term Loan from Federal Bank amounting to Rs. 56 crore sanctione
admeasuring 21.62 acre & first pari-passu charges on entire movable assets of company,

present and fulure,

3532.14
6069.45
188.50
4750.87
14540.76

0.00
0.00

3.03
63.77

263.39
70.84
361.21
346.99
20.82
21.12
1159.97
254.05
100.00
354.05
16054.78

5204.18
721192
0.00
2808.87
15224.97

10.88
10.66

2.73
§8.72

191.28
35.04
267.63
301.53
26.91
23.59
907.38
25405
100.00
354.05
16497.06

d during the year is sucured by first charge on land at Tehsil Chhainsa, Faridabad
and by second pari-passu charge of current assets both

2 Term Loans from other banks are secured by first charge by way of an equitable mortgage of immovable properties, both present and future, situated at

Vill Chhainsa, Faridabad admeasuring 32.756 Acres, and by a first charge by way of hypothecation of all the Col

mpany's movables including machinery,

machinery spares, tools and accessories, present and future, and by second pari passu charge by way of hypothecation of present and future stock of

raw materials, goods in process, fini

also secured by the guarantees of Shri M K Gupta, Shri Samir Gupta and Shri Abhishek Gupta Directors of the Company.

# Vehicle Loans are secured by hypothecation of specific vehicles purchased.

shed and manufactured goods together with components, spares and Book-Debts / Receivables. Term Loans are

* The permission of NCLT has been obtained regarding re-issue of Preference Shares on same terms & conditions for 10 years i.e. the same will be
redeemed not later than Aug,2030
» These Preference shares are to be redeemed on or before 10th February, 2029.
Maturity Profile of secured Term Loans are as set out below :

Maturity Profile Non-Current Current
Above 5 years 1-5 years Total 1 year
HDFC Bank Limited 0.00 3532.14 3532.14 1714.00
Federal Bank 0.00 188.50 188.50 0.00
Axis Bank Limited 1109.45 4960.00 6069.45 1500.00
Kotak Mahindra Prime Limited 1417.34 333333 4750.67 208.33
Total 2526.79 12013.97 14540.76 3422.33
Note - 16: Provisions - Non-Current
Provision for employee benefits:
Gratuity 732.90 642.52
732.90 642.52




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020
{Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2018

Note - 17: Income Tax
A. income Tax Expenses / (Benefits}

The Company is subject to income tax in India on the basis of financial statements. As per Section 115BAA of Income Tax Act, the Company Is liable to
pay income tax at the rate of 25,168 %

Companies can claim for tax exemptions/deductions under specific section subject to fulfilment of prescribed conditions as may be applicable.
Business loas can be carried forward for a maximum period of eight assessment years immediately succeeding the assessment year to which the loss
periains. Us orbed depreciation can be carried forward for an indefinile pericd.

The reconciliation of estimated income tax to income tax expense is as below:

sabs

Profit{lossibefore tax 3773.57 5027.27
Applicable Tax Rate 25.188% 34,944%
Computed Tax Expense 948,73 1756.73
Tax effect of :
(i) Expenses disallowed 3.66 4.80
{ii) Tax on income at different rates 0.00 0.00
(iii) Excess / (Short) provision made during the year .00 0.00
tivy (Excess) / Short provision made during the previous year 0.00 7.45
(v) Additional allowances net of MAT Credit 0.00 21.36
(vi} Effect of change in Tax Rate {1537.85) 46.05
Current Tax Provision (584.45) 1836.39
Effective Tax Rate -15% 37%

B. Deferred Tax Liability {Net}
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

At the start of the year 5496.98 4743.44
Charge/{credit) to Statement of Profit and Loss (1129.42) 753.54
At the end of year 4367.56 5496.98

Component of Deferred tax liabilities / (asset)

Charge/
(credit) to

As at Statement of As at
1st April, 2019 ..| 31st March, 2020
Profit
and Loss
Deferred tax liabilities / {asset) in relation to:
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asset 5803.99 (1204.51) 4599.48
Provisions (307.00) 75.09 (231.92)
Total 5496.98 -1129.42 4367.56
Note - 18: Other non-current Liabilities
(a) Advances from customers 0.00 88.18
{b} Government Grant (EPCG) 791.19 708.53
791.19 796.70

e

¢



Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

(Rs in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Note - 19: Borrowings
Loans repayable on demand
From Banks (Secured)
Working Capital Loans #
- State Bank of India: 6527.99 8402.80
- HDFC Bank Limited: 6695.76 £923.52
- Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 487.55 160.38
- Yes Bank 1035.2¢ 1480.52
- Axis Bank 1955.18 1738.03
Other loans and advances (Unsecured)
Foreign Currency Loans - Buyers Credit
- Axis Bank Ltd: 645.56 0.00
- HDFC Bank Limited: 27219 361.39
17619.52 19066.64

Details of security for the secured short-term borrowings:

Working Capital Loans are secured by first pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation of Company’s stocks and book-debts, present
and future and by a second charge on all the movable properties of the company including plant and machinery spares, tools and
accessories and other movables both present and future and by a second charge on all the immovable properties situated at Vill.
Chhainsa, Faridabad, admeasuring 32.756 Acres. The Working Capital Loans are also secured by the guarantees of Shri M K Gupta,

Shri Samir Gupta and Shri Abhishek Gupta Directors of the Company.

Working Capital Loans from State Bank of India is further secured by extention of charge by way of equitable mortgage of immovable

properties, both present and future, situated at Ballabgarh, Faridabad.

Note - 20: Trade payables
(a) Creditors for supplies and services
(b) Creditors for accrued wages and salaries

Mote - 21: Other Financial liahilities - Current
Current maturities of long-term debt

Due to Employees

Expenses payable

Creditors for Capital Expenditure

Statutory remittances (Contributions to PF and ESIC,
Withholding Taxes, GST, VAT elc.)

Trade / security deposits received

Note - 22: Other current liabilities
Advances from customers

Note - 23: Provisions - Current
Provision for employee benefits:
Provision for gratuity .

Provisions for CSR \

4322.51 3998.83
274.25 198.84
4596.76 4197.67
3432.99 2448.38
47.15 44.92
12.68 204.79
347.19 954.95
177.98 388.55
79.69 85.35
4097.68 4126.94
1641.31 241.50
1541.31 241.50
244.33 305.88
158.39 80.67
402.72 386.55




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st Mar, 2020

{Rs in Lakhs)
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
2019-20 2018-19
Note - 24: Revenue from operations
Indigenous Sales 40513.38 46497 .62
Export Sales 23165.52 23667.20
63678.90 70164.82
Less: GST Recovered 7508.06 8883.27
Total A 56170.84 61281.55
Note - 25a: Operating income
Testing Charges Received 294.87 223.68
Export Incentive 797.73 658.28
Total B 1092.60 881.96
Note - 25b: Non-operating income
Interest Received 182.92 51.10
Other Income 19.10 30.10
Government Grant (EPCG) 15.34 12.99
Total C 217.36 ‘ 94.20
Note - 26: Cost of materials consumed
Opening stock 3733.89 3046.73
Add: Purchases 18529.95 21343.03
Add: Freights 800.46 754.20
Less: Closing stock . 3179.56 3733.89
Cost of material consumed 19884.74 21410.07
Note - 27: Purchase of traded goods
Traded Goods 0.00 0.82
0.00 0.82

Note - 28: Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade
Inventories at the end of the year:

Finished goods 9996.83 9578.36
Work-in-progress 2649.32 1253.05
Stock-in-trade 0.00 2.32
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 9578.36 8396.39
Work-in-progress 1253.05 1912.26
Stock-in-trade 2.32 2.88
Net (increase) / decrease (1812.42) (522.19)

e




STAR WIRE {INDIA) LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st Mar, 2020

{Rs in Lakhs)
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
2019-20 2018-18
Note - 29: Employee benefits expense
- Salaries and wages
Salaries 1877.69 1861.73
Wages 387 .41 325.72
House Rent Allowance 482.77 481.12
Conveyance Allowance 184.22 183.35
Special Allowance 194.40 194.72
Good Work Award 135.47 158.05
Production Bonus 57.37 57.18
Stipend 74.71 29.08
Leave Encashment 94.60 77.72
Leave Travel Concession 73.39 75.59
Bonus 356.33 316.84
Notice Pay 2.25 0.00
Recruitment Expenses 3.28 3.58
Security Charges 136.37 123.83
Uniform Expenses 29.74 19.69
Discounting value of interest free loans to employees 1.21 1.04
- Contributions to provident and other funds
Deposit Link Insurance Fund Charges (Staff) 2.64 2.47
£S1 Contribution 20.47 31.25
PF Administrative Charges 12.58 13.04
PF Contribution 247 .42 233.72
- Staff welfare expenses
Labour Welfare 19.07 22.40
Medical Expenses 138.42 130.35
Contribution towards Labour Welfare Fund 0.00 1.48
Staff Welfare 99.83 94.25
Welfare Fund 7.59 4,15
- Employees’ Retirement Benefits
Provision for Gratuity 149.16 136.70
Retrenchment Compensation 6.43 10.92
Retirement Benefits 8.57 14.56
4803.36 4614.53
Note - 30: Finance costs
- Interest on borrowings 2475.06 2264.84
- Dividend on Redeemable Preference Shares & Taxes thereon 12.90 12.23
- Interest on Delayed / deferred payment of Govt dues 0.05 0.09
- Interest on Unsecured Loans 120.82 96.64
- Other borrowing costs (Bank Charges) 149.25 50.05
2758.08 2423.85
Note - 31: Other expenses
31.a - Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of stores and spare parts 11561.12 11869.20
Contract Charges 5045.79 4780.31
Conversion & Stitching Charges 149.88 176.82
Increase / (decrease) of GST on inventory # (1280.28) 168.74
Machining Charges 893.18 400.26
Pattern & Drawing Charges 155.24 207.28
Power and fuel 6587.20 7067.53
Testing Charges 66.77 100.92
23178.90 24771.07

# GST shown under Manufactqyr’ﬁ@enses represents the difference between GST on opening and closing stock ¢

of finished goods respectiyefy

e,




STAR WIRE (INDIA) LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st Mar, 2020

{Rs in Lakhs)
Current Year Previous Year
Particulars
2019-20 2018-19
31.b - Administrative Expenses
Audit Exp. (NABL) 0.13 0.95
Audit Fee (180-8002) & Others 6.08 8.22
Books & Periodicals 0.72 0.88
Charity & Donation 0.91 0.70
Directors Remuneration™ 215.80 22275
Directors Travelling Expenses 7.93 5.42
Electricity & Water Charges 23.36 2417
Foreign Tours & Travelling Expenses 22.09 32.23
Foreign Tours & Travelling Expenses (Directors) 28.99 3347
General & Miscellaneous Expenses 1.64 73.40
Insurance Charges 199.08 109.09
Keyman Insurance Policy 5.00 5.00
Loss on Sale of Vehicle 1.36 1.84
Meeting & Conference Expenses 0.02 0.81
Audit Expenses @ 12.77 13.39
Postage & Telegram Expenses 8.79 6.88
Printing & Stationery 26.75 26.73
Professional & Consultancy Charges 324.19 256.98
Rent 85.03 77.76
Rates & Taxes 18.15 22.77
Repair & Maintenance - Civil 424.66 537.64
Repairs and maintenance - Electrical 18.36 20.58
Repair & Maintenance - General 3043 43.55
Repairs and maintenance - Machinery 24492 329.44
Repair & Maintenance - Vehicles 66.28 82.25
Subscription & Membership Fees 9.81 13.16
Telephone Expenses 20.20 20.71
Travelling & Conveyance 208.94 253.71
2012.18 222417
** Remuneration paid / payable to Directors:
Managerial remuneration paid or payable during the period which
is much less than the prescribed under Companies Act, is as
under:-
Salary 21540 222.60
Directors' Sitting Fees 0.20 0.15
215.60 222.75
@ Payments to the auditors comprises (net of GST input
credit, where applicable):
(a) Auditors - Statutory Audit
Statutory Audit Fees 2.50 2.50
Reimbursement of expenses 0.60 1.18
3.10 3.68
{b} Cost Auditors
Audit Fees 1.50 1.50
Reimbursement of expenses 1.17 1.21
2.67 2.71
{c) Others
Tax Audit Fees 7.00 7.00
12.77 13.39
31.c - Selling & Distribution Expenses
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses 16.79 16.45
Commission & Brokerage 100.90 29.16
Entertainment & Sales Promotion Expenses 33.21 31.61
Rent (S&D) 87.01 0.00
Freight and forwarding 842.79 618.70
Custom Duty Paid On Overseas Sales 45.25 0.00
Bad & Doubtful Debts written off 31.83 0.00
Tender Fees 0.70 0.86
Trade Fare & Exhibition Expenses 12.75 38.82
1171.23 735.60 ..
26362.31 27730.83
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STAR WIRE (INDIAI LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 3ist March, 2020

Particulars

As at
3ist March. 2026

As at
31st March, 2019

Hote - 3% & fon to the
% Contd Gabiiities and = {to the extent not provided for}
&y Contingent Habiities
ia} Clalms egeinst the Company / disputed gt
b} Guaranises

sties not acknowledged as debt #

- irdand
{#} Comenitments

10 be exscuted on cepitel sccount and not provided for

£y amount of

- Targibie assels
- intangible assels
estmants parlly paid

5

unted with banks at close of e year,

elier of Cregit out:

Claim

nst the Dompany not acknowledged as debt

he company b wt g #ed Looal Ares De Tax (LADT) from 200405 to 200708 impused by Haryana State Govemment as it
was hei¢ by the Hor'ble Supreme Court of indig vide its order dated 30102008 detell as under

“Thess will be o recovery of tax il further orders of this Court, sugject 10 sach and svery Gssessee i this group of cases giving an undertaking
io the State and fo this Court that, in the event of their ultimately iosing the matier, they shall pay e amount dus with interest at the rate that
may be fixed by this Court atthe time of finat nearing of the matters.”

Semand Orders of Custom & Central Excise Authorisies disputed by the Company
Demand of addition Income Tax & interest pending with various appsilate Authorities, disputed by the Company

2013-20 201819
1 Euro = Re 83.20 77.88
TUSD =Rs 75475 £8.18
TAED = Ry 20.56 18.845
1ONY = Rs 10.655 18.295
b i amourt of i © be Gn capial account and not provided for (net of advances), as certified by the
management.
2 Details on derivatives instr and dged foreign

1, The foliowing derivative positions are open as at 31 March, 2020:
{a} Forward exchange contracts and options [being derivative instruments], which are not intended for rrading of speculative
purposes but for hedge purposes to establish the amount of reporting currency required of available at the setttement date of
certain payables and receivables.

Outstanding forward exchange contracts entered info by the Company:

Currency Buy / Selt As at 31s1 March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
Cross Cufrency Amount (2} Cross currency Amount (T)
€ Sell € 85,684,668 7,142 €97.12,072 §7.542
$ Seit $94,50.875 37133 $15,84.818 ¥ 1,098
AED Selt AED O 0 AED ¢ 20
B Buy $0 20 30 290
Jotal 214,275 ¥8,639

6796

102

@

285

14

87

208
89

162

&7

208
58

i, The year-end fareign currency exposures tat have not been hedged by a derivative instrument of otherwise are given below. The unhedged exposures are naturally hedged by future foreign

currency parnings and earnings linked to forsign cumrency.
A Buyers Gredit;

As 2t 315t March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
{Payable} (Payable}
{Payable} in Foreign currency {Payable} Foreign currency
INR {indicate amount with NR {indicate amount with
currency currency}
@18 $12,74,25142 361 $5,17,481.85
g £€0.00 (] €0.00
918 381 800
32 Packing Credit in Foreign Currency {PCFCH
As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March, 2019
{Payable} {Payable}
Payable} in Foreign {Payabie} in Forgigh currency
INR {indicate amount with INR {indicate amount with
curTernc currency)
499 $6,30,009.55 157 $2,19,644.83
1033 € 11.98,729.55 168 € 2,07,434.00
1531 325

Note: The management is of the view that the provision as desired in this ind-AS is having a very nominal effect on our books of accounis &
moreover, the same is already taken in accounts as & when the same accrues

Furthermore, the transactions involved are for a very small period Le. with in the range of 3 months to 6 months and on this ground also the
provision Is not affecting the financiat resuits of the company.

The financial effect Le. gain / (foss} arising out of such deviation:

Particulars As at 3fstMarch, | As at 31st March, 2079

2020

Denvatve-Foreign Exchangs Forward Contract {385)

PCEC 13

Buyers' Gredit 42,

Export Trade Receivables 414

import Trade Payables 3

Foreign Currency Loan 133

Tetal {160}
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STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Nates to the Financial Staternents for the year ended 31st Harch, 2020

As at As at

Particulars
31st March, 2020 3ist March, 2019

3 Discicsures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Smatl and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2008

{is Principal amount dug and remainy i % any supsher 2 8t the end of the socounting vear Ni
i Interest dug thereon remakting Unpaid 1o any suppiier s at the end of the accounting year i
H3 Tre smount of inferest pald along vt e smounts of the payment made 10 the supplier beyond the appointed day i

rast dus and payebie fo7 the year Wit Ng

rest acorued and 1o 4 unpaid at ihe end of the a0 i Ne
{ wriher intsrest due end pavalie aven in ihe succesting year Ui t such date when the intere® dues a8 above are sclualy Ni i
pa
Riere, Smal & Medium Enterpri have baen ined on the basis claims furnished by the suppliers in this regard. This has been
refisd upon by the auditors.
& s {nd AS 19}
a ion plans
sary makes Prov Fund contrit 1o defined contibulion plans for fify oy Undar the Schemes, the Company is 247 234
required o contribute a specified percentage of the payiof costs o fund the benefits. The Company resognised the amount for Provident Fund
contributions in the Statemant of Profit and Loss. The contributions payabie 1o thase plans by the Company are st rates specified in the ruiss of
g schemes.
5. Oefined benefit plans (Gratulty}
i Reconcifiation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation
nefit obligation at beginning of the yesr 1631 585
Cost 77 &8
73 58
§ {gaing/ 1058 64 {18}
& Cost inctuding Curtaiiment Gains/ o ¢
Benefits paid 120, i74
Defined Benefit obiigation at year end 1124 1031
#  Expenses recognised during the year
in Income Statement
Cyrrent Service Cost 77 88
73 £8
Cost Inciuding Curtailiment Gains/ Loss g g
Expecied return on Plan assels 9 Q
Net Cost 149 137
in Other Comprehensive income
iarial {gain} / foss 84 {18}
Expected returm on Plan assets g [}
Net {Income)f Expense For the period Recognised in OC1 64 {16}
W) Actuarial assumptions:
Discount rate {per annum) 6.30% 7.65%
Satary escalation (Per Annum} 5.50% 5.50%
Attrition (Per Annum} 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality tables 1ALM (2006-08} 1ALM (2006-08)
5  Operating Segment reporting (Ind AS 108}
The Company is engaged in manufacture and sale {both domestic and export) of Special Steel Products, which constitutes single business
segment As per management's perspective, the risks and returns from its sales do not iy vary Iv; rdingly there are no
sihet busingss aphical segments to be reported under ind AS 108 issued by the lnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India.
§ Earning Per Equity Share {of Re. 1/- each) (Ind AS 33)
Net Profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders 4285 3178
Weigited Average number of equity shares used as denominator for calculating EPS 279047500 279047500
Basic Earnings per share 1.53 1.14
Dituted Earnings per sharg 1.83 1.14
Face Value per equity share 1.00 1.00
7 Confirmation
* The company has requesiad for confirmations of balances from is creditors and debtors, which has been confirmed by majority of creditors and
debiors, Provisions, wherever considerad necessary, have been made
* 1n the opinion of the management the investment, current / nen current assets are reslizable at 3 value, at par as staled, inthe ordinary course
ot business and provisions for all known and determined faniities are adequate and not i excess of the amount stated
8  Details of borrowing costs capitalised (Ind AS 23}
£ costs capitaiised during the year
- as fixed assets / capital work-in-progress 587 310
587 310

9 Related party disclosures (Ind AS 24}
As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related pariies are given beiow.

i of relak s where control exi elated parti om ransactions have taken place;
Sr. No. Namae of the Related Party Refationship

Mr. Mohinder Kumar Gupla
s4r. Saric Gupta

#ar. Abhishek Gupla Key Managament Persenng!
Ms, Mehima Gupta
#s. Rekha Gupla
#Ar. Bita Ram Gupla Relative of key Managemernt Personngl
WMis Gita Ram Mohinder Kumar

Mis Supreme Comm. Enterprises Lid

[XRS

RN RN

wis Supersigma Alfoy & F
/s Abhi Trading Company

1i/s Juhi leasing & Finance Limited
#4/s Star Wire Elect P Limited

Wis Star Wire {1} Biomass P Limited
Mis Siar Wire {1} Enginesring Limited
Saragwati charitabie Trust

Shres Radha Krishna Charitabie Trust
ari Dharmath Sansthan Enlerprise: ssociates over which b t
charitadle Trust Personnel and their refatives are able fo sxercise
Kuber Dharmartt Sansthan significant influgnce

Mahawar Dharmnerih Sansthan

Mis Steel Private Limited

/s Abhinandan Trafin Private Limited
tis Comflower may LLP

gs Pt Limited

PELEOROLSES

PR SN G gy

[T

1P 1 6

2

Finws

AT
Sun Source Leal et
ivate Limited

ks Surendra Broth REErs F
Ws S J Tea ‘adgrs sghility Partnership
3 s
Y




&
®

STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED
Hotes o the Financial Statements for the year ended Jtst March, 2820

Particuiars

As at
31st March, 2020

As at
31st March, 2018

e vear with relaled pariss,

Seho Hature of Transactions {Excluding Koy Management Refative of key Entarprises | Assecza::j c;::;whsch
relmbursements} Persorinel Personnsi- are able to exercize significant iInflience
H Purchase of goods 480
{1343}
@ Saie of goods 438
{3te4)
3 interest Received L4
[
3 Managerial Remuneration 215
(223}
4 Dividend Payment 11
{10y
8 Contract Charges / Machining Charges 1072
{588)
g Rent A 1
[§1] (1)
7 intergst Paid 110 3 &
87) 3 7y
8 Directors Meeting Fees Y
Q
Balsnce as at 31st March, 2013
g Fayables g 255
o (188
10 Unsecured Loans 1072 21 67
(822 (24) 813
11 Investments 130
{144)
13 Bank / Corporate Guarantees 4
0
12 Receivables 695/
(1400}
13 Loans & Advances Given 718
{615}
impairment of the Assets {ind AS 36)
1n fine with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard — 38 on “impairment of Assets’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india, the company reviews the carrying amount of its
fixed assets on each balance sheet date for the purpose of ining i if any, by ¢ ing assets of entire one plant as Cash Generating Unit (CGU}. On such review as at 31 * March

2018, wherever there was indication of impairment, the net realizable value thereof was assessed by the Management and the same was more than the carrying amount. On further review as at 31™
rarch 2020, these vaiualions of the assets continue to be higher than the bock value and accordingly, nC provision is required to be made in the avcounis.

Value of imports calculated on CIF basis:
Raw Material & Stores
Capital goods
Software

Expenditure in foreign currency:
Travelling
Commission & Brokerage
Professional and consultation fees

interest

Subscription

Freight Quiward

Contract Charges

Testing Charges

Trade Fair & Exhibition Expenditure
#Machining Charges Paid Alc (Out of india)
Rent Charges

Details of consumption of imported and indigenous items:

Imported

Raw Material and Stores & Spares

indigenous

Raw Material and Stores & Spares

Earnings in foreign exchange:
Export of goods calculated on FOB basis

Fair value measurement

Total

Total

7050 €421
389 2872
g g
7449 12293
e
20 83
87 18
78 17
0 o
g 3
141 105
o 278
5 7
[+ 8
Q 1
75 k1]
406 519
7429 8801
7429 §801
24017 24478
24017 24478
21752 21815
21752 21615

The fair value of the financial assets and fistilities are included at the amount that would be received 10 sell an asset and paid to transfer  lability in an orderly transaction between market parficipants.

and i were used to esti

te the fair values:

The i
Trade receivebles, cash and cash sauivalents, other bank balances, short ternt loans, other current financial assets, current borrawings, trade payables and other current financia! Habifitie

approximate thelr carrying amounts Jargsly due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.




STAR WIRE (INDIA} LIMITED

Motes to the Financial Staterments for the year ended 3ist Harch, 2020

Particulars

As at
31st March 2930

As at
3ist March, 2018

for

and

The uses the

tha fair value of

Tre foiowing is e basis for categorising the financial instrurnents measured at fair valve info Level 1o Level T

Lavel 11 This level includes financial assets thal are measu:
Level 20 This level incluties financial assels and Babiities, measured using inputs other than quoted prioes i

prices; o7 indirectly (L8, derived from pricesy, ammt
w13 Tris level includes fnarial assets and Habl

5 measured using inputs that are not based on o
§ by prices from observable curtent market wansactions in e seme insirument nor are ey based

using & valuation moge! based on

that are neither

rad by referance o quoted prices (unadfustad; in Fotive ma

oy

market data §

observable for the assst or fabil

inguits). Faly values are dater

skats for ientical assels of fabiifies
cluded within Lavel 1 that are

whole of In part,

A3 at 31t March 2420

Particutars Carrylng amount Level of input used in
Lovell LevelZ feveld
Financial Assets
At Amortised cost
TraUe receviabie 18.081 - - 18,081
Cash & cash squivaients 150 - - 150
Sank baiances other than cash & cash equivalents 384 - . 384
Loan 1116 - - 1,118
Cver financial assets 1085 - - 1,088
ALFVTOCT
invesiment 130 - - 130
Financial Liabilitles
At Amortised cost
Borrowing 33674 - - 33874
Trade payables 4,597 - - 4,887
Other financial iabi 4.088 - - 4,098
A at 315t March, 2019
Particulars Carrying amount Tevel of input used in
Level 1 Level 2 Levei 3
Financial Assets
At Amortised cost
Trade recevieble 19,339 - - 19,338
Cash & cash equivalents 128 - - 128
Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents 237 - - 237
Loan 81 - - 810
Other financial assets 898 - - 898
At FVTOCH
investment 144 - - 144
Financial Liabilities
At Amortised cost
Botrowing 35.564 - - 35,564
Trade payables 4,198 - - 4,198
Qther financial liabitities 4,127 - - 4127

Financial Risk Management

The Company's management monitors and manages the financial risks refating to the sper:

srigrest rate risk and other price risk}
Credit risk

Financial instruments that are subject to

1s of credit risk,

the financial instruments of the Company resultin material concentrations of credit risks.

The age analysis of trade receivables as of the balance sheet date havs

lly consist of balance with banks, i

stions of the Company. These risks include credit risk,

Credit risk refors 1o the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss 1o the Company.

sither direcly (e, 8%

 liquidity risk and market risk {including currency risk,

None of

in debtir

trade

o been considered from the due date and disciosed in below table,

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31,2019
Up to 6 month 16,574 17,485
ore than B month 2,507 1,855

Liguidity risk

The Compary manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking faciities

1he maturity profiles of financial assets and fiabilities.

The surplus funds with the Company and operational ca:

#Maturity profile of financial liabitities

sh flows will be sufficient to dispose the financial labilities within the maturity period

particalars As at March 31,2020
0-1 year 1-5 year Beyond § year Total
Borowing [ ncluding current matunty of fong term DOfrowing 22,567 12,014 2,827 37,107
Tade Payabie 4587 4,587
Ciher current habiites 1,541 - - 1.541
PO As af March 31,2019 ]
0-1 year 1.8 year Beyond § year Total
Bomowing { Including corrent maturity of fong term borrowing 22,787 12,710 2515 38,012
Trade Payable 4,198 4198 1
Tither Gurrent labies 242 - - 247 |

Market risk

Markel risk is the risk of any loss in future earmings, in realisable fair val

primarit

sensitivity analysis.
interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value o future

arket interest rafes relates prmarily to the debt abligations with fioating inter

horrowings.

Exposure to interest rate risk

the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates

cash Jows of a financial instrument wi
rest rates. The Company manages its inferest rate risk by having a balanced port

Particulars As at As at
Margh 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Total Borrowings 37,307 38012
4, of Borrowings out of above bearing variable rate of interest 47 .48% 50.16%
interest Rate sensitivity:
A change of 100 bps in interest rates would have foliowing Impact on profit before tax
Particulars As at As at
. March 31, 2020 March 341, 2013
150 bp increase would decrease (he.profit befere lax by 171 191
178 191

15 bp decrease would incréase the profit hefors tax by

. ioans and advance

and reserve borrowing facilities, by continucusly monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching

es or in future cash flows that may result from & change in the price of a financial instrument. The Company's activities expose it
and interest rates risi/liquidity risk which impact returns on investments. Market risk exposures sre measured using

Fuctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure fo the risk of changesin
o of fixed and variable rate loans and



STAR WIRE {INDIA} LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020

Particulars As at As at
3ist March, 2830 3ist March, 2018
Foreign currency tisk management
Tre Company = i iy foraign == o raie i arise. The carrying amounts of the Company's kireign sumenuy
=g mar azssis and mons sabifties st the end of he reporting pariod are as foliows:
%Amsmi mnFx
RS at March 31,2020 As at Warch 31,
Particulars Foraign currency Foreign currenty Foreign currenty Foreign currency
monstary assels monstary Habiiities monetary menetary Habllities
&8 731 85 10,05 052
32.80843 585 3,78,424
EET , 876 ;
TRY , - - EEe)

Foreign currency sensiivity

owing tabie detalls the Company's sensitivly 10 @ 1% incraase and decrease in INR against the relevant forgign currencios. 1% is ihe sensitivity rate used when reporting forgign currency risk
¢ parsonnet and 1 £ = of the ity possible changs in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis rcludes only oulstanding

forsign currency denominated monstary lems. A positive rumber Beicw dicates a0 incraass In profit of squity where INR stengthens 1% against the relovant currency. For a 1% weakening of INR

gainst the 18] wrrency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or squity, and the balances below would be negative.

Particulars As ai March 31,2028 As at March 31,2018
1% Ingrease 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

Foreign currency monelary assels

S ig {19 1%
EURD 31 34 35 135}
AED 18 [§11)] 3
CONY
Foreign currency monetary Hiabilities
UsD &) ki [&di 7
SURO 27 27 {4} 4
AED - - - N
TRY - - 1 1
wact on profit of loss as at the end of reporting yeat

n maragement’s apinion, the sensitivity analysis is untepressntative of the inherert forgign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period doss not reflect the exposure during
ihe year.

The figures for the ¢ ing previous year have been, y, to make them

As per our report of even date:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

s S

{Mohinder Kumar Gupta)
Managing Director
DIN - 00054110

For PRYD & Associates
Chartered Accountants

|
]

{CA P M. Ital}
Pastner 7
sembership No.: (Rekha $harma) (Samir Gupta)
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